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R T = = RSN ful summer, both at home and abroad, as members of BAHA
Claremont Botrfevard Piedmont Way traveled far and wide...Germany, the Galapagos, Switzer-
C ON T S land, England, the Amazon, And our eyes will be filled with
Donate io BAHA’s Many Funds! page 2 Tnspired by Maybeck: Early Chalet Houses page 10 neh 1:5 reate thei o ni” I for o s
Gifts 1o BAHA page 2 Landmarks Ordinance Update page 11 ways others create their environment. I, for one, was en-
President’s Messag oe 1 Disbeln in S - 12 chanted with the colfombage half-timbered houses of North-
resicent § (CASAEE . pase - oheln I axony page ern France, the tidy barns and chalets of Switzerland and
The California Memorial Stadium page 4 Goings-On About Town page 14 the strong flint construction of walls, churches an d houses
Strawberry Canyon: the Stadium’s Setting___page 6 Members News page 15 : ved b b
The Tssue of Possible Stadium Expansion __page 8 Calendar of Events nage 16 in Kent. In Europe the sense of preserved history a ounds, :

Cover: The California Memorial Stadim wirh Strawberry Canyon and Panoramic Hill behind. “Stadiwm, University of California,

Berkeley, " Assaciated Students postear
Olmsted's “pleasure drive” that was realized in 1907).
Abeve right: Julia Morgan houses on Olmsted’s Piedmont Way (see story

BAHA’S MANY FUNDS: GIFTS YOU CAN MAKE

posicard. ¢. 1913, Pasicards
vourtesy of Anrheny Bruce,

ol mo. 336, ¢, 1923, Above left: The entrance gotes to Claremont Court on Cluremont Blvd, (v section of
“Residence Paul €, Tietzen, Berkeley, Cal.,” The Alberiype Co. posteard, ¢ 1913,
on page 8). “Maodel Homes. Berkeley, Cul.,” The Athernype Co.
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BAHA wishes to encourage those of you who might like to make an extra (ax-

support the idensification of historic re-
sources and the writing of City Landmark

neighborhood and area survey work.

Margo Gwinn Legal Fund. Set up to
ensure that BAHA has the ability fo re-
spond to ouistanding preservation issues
with the assistance of legal counsel. The

Fund. BAHA is fortunate to have its
beautiful historic house in central Ber-

hope to be able ta create more work and
storage space in the carriage house!

Publications Fund. For publishing

books and pamphiets on Berkeley’s ar-
chirectural herituge.

) I

GIFTS TO BAHA

the Spring Mansion) came from Larry Leon. From Wendy Marlkel came the sump-
tuous catalog of the exhibit, “International Arts and Crafts”, which she visited at the

Victoria and Albert Museum.

The BAHA Newsletter is publishad quarterly

by the Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association and is sent to all mem-

UMMER is fading fast and, with Football Days almost
here, the city is getting that Fall feeling. It was an event-

hut even there changes take place. The most stunning of
which was the British “Office of Redundant Churches™ of-
fering for sale a glorious 12th Century church which could become a private residence (but it has to stay
looking like a church with the grave yard around!). If you are looking for a preservation “crusade”, look
no further!

Fursule! St Peter's Church, Swingfield, Kest, England,

In light of the City of Berkeley’s review of our local preservation ordinance, members of BAHA |
Landmarks Preservation Commissioners, and City staff atiended the California Preservation Foundation

Wendy Markel, deductible donation, either to BAHA's general fund or to one or more of BAHA's n L0 i 3 : rvatl

canti 01 President standing special funds, including: and State Office of Historic Preservation’s 2005 Workshop Series: “Does your Historic Preservation

airie Olson, up?”! wi i 4 - i i-
Vice- Prysident Sara Holmes Boutelte Fund. Createdto  McCreary-Greer House Restoration Progra,m Need a Tune-up?” with SESSIons on Surveys,‘CEQA, and “Tune-up your Pn'eservaunn Ordi

John McBride, nance.” We also hope to sponsor a similar conference in Berkeley next year, perhaps in one of Walter

Ratcliff’s wonderful school buildings as a prelude to our Ratcliff House Tour in May.

Treasmar applications and National Register ap- keley, near the campus and downtowr, One of the greatest pleasures associated with BAHA is the opporiunity to recognize and award those
Layrie Bright plications. With additional Boutelle fund-  giving BAHA an ideal location for its ex- who have done outstanding architectural preservation work throughout the year. I would encourage all
Susan Cemy ing, BAHA would also like to renew  panding research materials. Someday, we members to consider bringing to the attention of the office, by submitting a nomination, the projecis that

they have noticed and would consider worthy of a preservation award at our Annual Meeting.

T would like to bring to the notice of all members that BAHA is still custodian of the amazing 1886 U.5.
patented prefabricated Kenney Coltage (currently on University Avenue), but the City has alerted us that
they plan to sell the lot and we have about six months to find a permanent home for our cottage. Time is

Tim Hansen . BARA conld aive duri running out. If any meémbers have an idea they would like to suggest, please contact the office.

Richerd Petiler recent connse could give during  john Beach Memorial Fund. An en- i - . A . . . o

Saily Sachs the LPO revision discussion was a criti- dovwment for architectural lectures And, il youdo atten.d any foothall games in Memonal_ Stadn{m this Fall, please take }nto acgm.mt the
Arlene Silk cal factor: ’ pleasures of the beautiful natural setting and the splendid architecture, If the construction project goes
Jerry Sulliger ahead, this may be the last opportunity to recognize John Galen Howard’s original design.

Our concern about the Stadium project, and its effect on the historic resources in the vicinity, is the

Richnrd Wesell Ladonna Stoppel gave the BAHA library a delightful children's book on Olmsted, theme of this Newsletter, with three articles beginning on page 4, page 6, and page 8. Also read the story
Srare cailed The Man Who Made Parks by Frieda Wishinsky. A collection of California on page 10 to learn the significance of one of the nearby
Anthony Bruce Monthiy alummni magazines and material from Williams College (once located in historic houses—the Cheney Cottage, City of Berkeley

Landmark No. 139.

On a brighter note...do stop by our booth on the Solano
Stroll on Sepiember 11th, and plan to attend the evening
BAHA is co-hosting at the Mission style South Berkeley

WIAA:

Wendy Markel,

hers of the Association. Entire contents of this issue © 2005 by the Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association, P.O. Box 1137, Community Church on October 15th! President

Berkeley, California 94701, tek: 510-841-2242; e-mail: baha @berkeleyheritage.com; website: www.herkeleyheritage.com.

e Tosina Thantar
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Californtin Memorial Stadium filled 1o capaciry on Big Gawe Day. 1940s photo postcard courtesy of Antlony Bruce.

THE CALIFORNIA MEMORIAL STADIUM -

John Galen Howard's Beaux-Arts Colisenm in a Sylvan Setting

HE California Memorial Stadium (John Galen

Howard, 1921) is tucked into the base of the Ber-
keley hills, comfortably perched at the mouth of Straw-
berry Canyon. It was built “in thankful memory of those
Californians who in the War of Nations gave their all
fhat we might live,” and was completed just in time for
the 1923 Big Game. The dimensions of this grand Beaux-
Arts structure “slightly exceed the great Coliseum of
Rome.” Although it is elevated on the eastern edge of
the sloping campus, the Stadium is barely visible today
from most vantage points due to the intervening years
of tree growth and building construction that now ob-
scure the dramatic eastward vista,

Strawherry Canyon was not John Galen Howard's
first choice as a site for Memorial Stadium, in part be-
cause the site required massive excavation. Howard's
preference was a site near the downtown (now Edwards
Field). But pressure from trustees and the fact that a
portion of the Strawberry Canyon site was already
owned by the University forced the issue. Whatever the
drawbacks might have been to the Strawberry Canyon
location—including the fact that the Hayward Fault runs
through the site—and in spite of significant protest at

the time, including a letter signed by William G. Corlett,
Henry H. Gutterson, Bruce Porter, Walter H. Ratcliff,
Ir., and Walter T. Steilberg, the mechanical problems
were thought to be solvable with engineering solutions,
such as culverting the creek, dynamiting Charter Hill
far landfill, and placing expansion joints between the
concrete sections.

Being out of sight, the Stadium is also out of mind,
except on Game Days when the traffic increases and
parking places are at a premium. It was not built as close
to public transporlation as was originally desired. The
1920s subscription brochure boasted that *1200 ma-
chines would be able to park within a half-mile radius
of the Stadium...” even then realizing that most would
drive rather than travel by streetcar. Today, the norm
stifl is the expectation that the Stadium is reached by
way of two-lane, mostly residential streets.

Very little parking is available around the Stadium
because it was built without parking lots and the few
that exist were tucked in later. However, atiendees do
seem to find parking on city streets for these special
events—sometimes as far as two miles distant—and the
walk to the Stadium has become part of the annual Game
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Day tradition. Walking through
Berkeley’s residential neigh-
borhoods is enjoyable, and
Game Day even offers the op-
portunity to show off our town
to visitors!

The parking problems
have never been solved, partly
because automobile access 1o
lhe Stadium is limited by the
geography. There is limited
egress east through the hills,
while leaving the Stadium en
masse from other directions is
restricted by the narrow resi-
dential streets of the historic neighborhoods separating
the Stadium from downtown and major arterials.

In fact, those who might complain that Memorial
Stadium has a disadvantage to ather “PAC-10" stadi-
ums, e.g. Stanford Stadium and Los Angeles Memorial
Coliseum, which, we understand, have 10,000 and 8,200
on-site parking spaces, respectively, are unaware of the
added attractions that give Berkeley's Game Days a
sense of tradition and gaiety. They need to experience
such activities as following the Cal Marching Band along
Piedmont Way or feeling the camaraderie among the
small groups as they walk along Berkeley's streets after
a game, sharing football’sentiments. -

The paucity of close-by parking lots has proved to
be advantageous to the academic setting of the campus
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Homes with rraditiona! front gardens along tree-shaded Belrose Aver

The monumental North Entronce 1o the Sudium, 19205 photo posteard conriesy of Anthony Brice.
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because it has fortunately prevented more intense com-
mercial use of the Stadium over the years. Now that the
Stadium is due for a seismic retrofit, there is fear that
the pressures from the Sports Entertainment Industry
might cause the University to Jose sight of its mission,
its college traditions, and its historic setting. Might the
Stadium then lose its architectural dignity? —be ex-
panded? —be raised in height? Might it be used for night
games? —concerts? —other commercial uses? Any of
which, with the accompanying increase in traffic and
noise, would be devastating to surrounding neighbor-
hoods. The activity attending the half dozen or so Game
Days during the year lends a festive atmosphere to the
town; anything more would strain the delicaie balance
between lown and gown to the limik.

who have walked to Cal’s foorball games. These

Jomes are witlin the gracious Claremonr Court subdivision (1907), laid our by Charies Huggins for Duncan MeDuffie, who paterned lis
subdivision developmens after the principles espoused by Frederie Lenw Obnsted. Betry Jane Nevis photo, ¢, 1935, BAHA Archives.
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STRAWBERRY CANYON, “A MOUNTAIN GORGE”
Berkeley’'s Natural Landscape Framing the Stadium

Sreawberry Canyon is the most frequented rramp in Berkeley,
perhups because one may swroif along the upper creek bed
end fase sight of all that reminds hing [sic] of @ rows—forger,
Jor linde while, sireets, und houses, and gordens...and baoks.
Running berween the walls of the hill, over o mumbled bed of
boulders, and through regular runnels of ook and laurel und
willow, and tangled disorder of creeper and fern, Strawberry
Creek lras an wiamed beaury and waywardness that pleases
as no gurden or park-land can. —1903 Blue & Gold

HE awesome beauty of the Strawberry Canyon set-
ting was undoubtedly the compelling, and ultimately
persuasive, reason for the final choice for the Stadium
site. The view looking east was to the residential neigh-
borhood of Panoramic Hill and the undeveloped land of
*Strawberry Canyon, and the view to the west was to the
San Francisco Bay and the Golden Gate. A more spec-
tacular setting for a stadium could hardly be found—
can hardly be found—anywhere in the world. And so it
came to be that the California Memorial Stadium was
located at the mouth of a canyon.

Strawberry Canyon was always a place to explm'e,'
a rural escape in walking distance of campus. The veg-
etation along Strawberry Creek and up the north facing

Punoramic Hill seen from the narth slope of Srawberry Conyon, “In the
Berkeley Hills™ by Jumes William Crosstex. 1907 edition of A Berkeley Yenr.

/ -
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A warerfull in the mouth of Strawberry Conyon thar vanisied during
the construetion of the Stadium. Posteard courtesy of Anthony Bruce.

canyon slope was dense with coast live oaks and scrub.
The creek itself, strengthened by contributions from such
tributaries as Chicken Creek, Ten Inch Creek, Ravine
Creek. Banana Creek, and Botanical Garden Creek, was
once 80 copious as to be the primary water supply for
the emerging university, and, in fact, the reason for
choosing the Berkeley sile in 1858,

When Frederick Law QOlmsted was hired by the
College of Catifornia in 1863 to lay out the Berkeley
Property Tract for a gracious residential neighborhood
adjacent to the campus, he identified this “mountain
gorge™ and flowing creek waters as nearby amenities:

As tliis road fwhat became lknowan ns Canon Road and eventually
anglicized to Canyon Road] follows a sirecin of waier from the
apen landscape of the buy vegion into the midst of the mouniaing
it offers u great change of scenery within u short diswnce, and
will constinte a unigue and most valvable appendage to the
general local atractions of the nefghborhood.

Today the canyon continues to be an amenity for
all who have discovered its fire trails, wandered its deer
paths, and climbed down its steep creekbanks. Not just
utilitarian, the fire trails meander through the hills of-

fering solace and inspiration.

The Botanical Garden found its home here in the
1920s, moving from the center of the campus. Aside
from these cultivated gardens, the canyon enchants with
its own abundant native flora. Amelia Sanborn Allen, a

local resident who was an avid birdwatcher and wife of

Classics Professor James Turney Allen, once wrote:

Tor the narth and east the aak forest is contingous, frerspersed
with by mees: and there is o dense undergrowrl of hazel,
cuscard, poison oak, spiraea, wild rose, snow-berry, wild
errant, blackberry and brakes, with thimble-berries and wild
perrsnip filling ihe cross ravines.

FPAGE ©
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Canyon Ruad in Strawberry Canyon in the 1890s. Palache family atbum, courtesy of Judith Palache Gregory.

Whereas Mrs. Allen appreciated the flora as bird
habitat, another resident of the canyon neighborhood
had carefully and methodically classified California
plant species. Botany Professor Willis Jepson, the fa-
ther of California native plants identification and a
founding member of the Sierra Club, built his Julia
Morgan-designed home on Panoramic Hill and had the
whole canyon as a natural botanical laboratory nearby.

The native flora is there today—just as the Sta-
dium is there—bul mostly out of mind in these less lei-
surely times. All the better, then, when the discovery of
a patch of trillium blooming in early spring is the kind
reward for discernment and perseverance.

Strawberry Canyor is home to a variety of fauna.
An early morning walk with a small dog might yield the
sighting of a Great Horned Owl not yet sated from noc-
turnal hunting. During a late afternoon walk, a covey of
quail might be observed quietly scurrying across the dirt
fire trail. In the distance, crowds might be cheering and
cannons booming. The day may have started with the
sound of songs from the carillon ringing out from the

Campanile, The day may end with the sight of a fog
bank forming off in the distance.

Directly across from the Golden Gate, aligned with

_the Campanile, admired as scenic vista, or appreciated

up close as contemplative sanctuary, this is Olmsted’s
“mountain gorge” — Strawberry Canyon.

A Jate afternoon in Straveberry Canyon, summer 1923, BAHA Archives,
pift of Richard Wesell,
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Traffie control signs obscure one of the Claremont Courr entry
gates (John Galen Howard, 1907), Ciry of Berkeley Landmark
No. 283. This gare is on Derby Streer. Dunietla Thompson, 2005.

Stadium Project’s Potential Effect
Spreads Far and Wide

F all the many “preservation issues” looming over

Berkeley, the proposed seismic reirofit of Memo-
rial Stadium is prediciably the most monumental, Re-
ports are that the Stadium will be rebuilt and expanded,
including a massive excavation under the eastern side of
the Stadium to create new office space and facilities. This
project is part of a larger southeast campus expansion
project which also includes a colossal new “Academic
Commoans Building” between Boalt Law School and the
Haas Business School adjacent to the Stadium. Yet, to
date, the fult scope, size, footprint, and destgn of the Sta-
dium project is stifl unrevealed to the public,

While the citizens of Berkeley wait to learn the par-
ticulars of the University’s plans for Cal's PAC 10 [oot-
ball team in the Stadium and the extent of its plans to
foster global legal and business strategies in the proposed
Academic Commons Building, the southeast area of Ber-
keley, in ever increasing concentric circles, is suffocat-

Wiy is the front lavwn of the historic Arthur B, Woud House (Charles W.
Dickey, 1906), 2636 Warring Street, being used as a parking lot? This
pnsightly and detrimental parking is evidence of increased densiry not
allowable through zoning in this neighborhoad. Daniella Thompsen, 2005.

ing from spreading institutional demands. Memorial Sta-
dium, being one of America’s few remaining classic col-
legiate sports facilities, is located not only in a natural
setting, but also within an historic context. Behind the
Stadium is the breathtaking Strawberry Canyon, with its
backdrop of deep canyon, hills, and sky. Almost above
the Stadium is the picturesque Panoramic Hill, recently
designated a National Historic District. Immediately ad-

S

The Wittiun Collyy House at 2904 Channing Way in the Berkeley
Properry Tract, Londmark No. 98, is one of Julin Morgan's finest
residentic! designs, daring from 1905, Neny, as o stident rooming house,
it hts beconne a blight on the londscape. Withour pernti review by the
Landmarks Preservarion Compuission, o concrete “play yard™ s
repluced the front gurden and large signs have been rucked 1o the houwse.
Duniella Thampson, 2003,

o= P
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Duily bumper-to-bumper traffic going north on historie Pledmont
Avertie infrom of the William Thorsen House (Greene & Greene, 19093,
Landnark No. 8, Danietln Thowpson, 2005,

jacent to the Stadium is Frederic Law Olmsted’s historic
Berkeley Property tract and its gracious 100-foot-wide
Piedmont Way (California State Historical Landmark Site
#086). Beyond, to the south, are the traditional streetear
suburbs of the Willard Park and LeConte neighborhoods
and the lovely residential neighborhoods of Claremont
Court and Claremont Park—the “most desirable region
for residences all along the foot of the mountains.”* The
“Warring-Derby Corridor” runs through them, connect-
ing 1o Tunnel Road (stilf dedicated as a part of the State
Highway System) and El Camino Real.

Trush-sirewn “front garden” of o student rooning loise, viewed frons
the srreer. Thiz is the historic Olney House (Julic Morgan, 1981} at
3434 Warring Street ane of the fine houses thar conributes o the
chardcter of the Berkeley Praperry Tract, Demielle Thempson, 2005

The current situation is precarious for the cul-
tural and historic resources around the Stadium. It
has become ordinary to experience bumper-to-
bumper traffic (even in Strawberry Canyon), o be
assaulted by exploding student density, to view the
ever-creeping blight of forgotten trash and litter, io
sight SUVs parked on lawns, to see fronl gardens
paved-aver for parking, or to view architecturally
significant buildings virtually demolished by ne-
glect, Such blight is not limited only to the sched-
uled seven Game Days per vear, but, significantly,
experienced everyday and into most evenings.

It was in this context that BAHA wrote the
University in Tune of 2004 with a plea that a full
environmental review process be conducted for the
Stadium project, emphasizing “that any further
changes to either the face of the Stadium or its surround-
ings, including all cumulative effects, must be fully and
adequately revealed to the public-at-large in a timely fash-
ion, in compliance with the California Environmental
Quality Act.” (Since that time the University has selected
an architectural team, including HNTB Architecture, spe-
cialists in transporiation and bridge projects; Moore Ruble
Yudell Archilects and Planners, recognized for its design
of the Haas School of Business; and Archilectural Re-
sources Group, specialists in historic preservation
projects.) However, now, in August of 2003, having been
told in the press that the University intends to begin con-
struction in January 2006, the public is still awaiting a
responsible CEQA discussion.

Certainly, all questions about the effects of the Me-
morial Stadium and Academic Commons projects deserve
serious consideration, and nnow! Both the town and gown
have a responsibility Lo future generations to ensure the
protection of our cultural and architectural heritage. This
is not just the responsibility of “preservationists.” It is
necessary Tor everyone who lives in and passes through
the “Southeast Area”—aitendees of the wonderful Game
Days filled with tradition, faculty on their way to work,
and, students walking home from campus—to strive to
protect a healthy tax base, a world-class academic civil-
ity, and the enhancement of an irreplaceableenvironment.

% taken from Frederic Law Olinsted s “Study for Laving the Berkeley
Neighborhood Including the Grounds of the Coliege of Coliforniu™ in
hix tredrise Report upon ¢ Projected [mprovement of the Estate of the
College of California, at Berkeley. Near Oakland, 1466.
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INSPIRED BY MAYBECK
Early Chalet-Style Houses

HEN art and drama critic Sheldon Cheney moved

back to his native Berkeley in the late 1970s,
BAHA took the opportunity to interview him. We thus
learnad from him some of the hisiory of the two hereto-
fore “mystery” houses at 2241 and 2243 College Av-
enue (City of Berkeley Landmark No. [39) on the north-
ernmost block of College Avenue that was long ago sub-
sumed by the expanding University campus. Because

the Cheney houses may be threatened, it is especially:

important to understand their significance.

Mr. Cheney’s father, Warren Cheney, a writer who
later turned to real estate development in Berkeley, built
2241 in the 1880s and Sheldon, along with his brother,
architect Charles Cheney, grew up there. The cottage at
9243—the true “mystery” cotiage due to its unusual
“Swiss chalet” styling—was built in the rear garden as
income property. we were told, the first tenants being
the Prof, JTames Turney Allens wha later built on nearby
Panoramic Hill. With this information we were then able
to “mateh” the cottage with a contract notice from the
June 21, 1902 issue of the Berkeley Gazetre, listing the
builder and designer as Carl Ericsson.

Tn addition to the obvious importance of these struc-
tures in their connection Lo the llustrious Cheney and
Allen families and their stralegic siting in the Berkeley
Property Tract (as laid out by Frederick Law Olmsted),
the cottage possesses added importance in that it is an
early example of the influence that architect Bernard
Maybeck had on early home-builders and how his de-

P

Maybeck’s Boke Hiuse, as seen as an illustration in The Simple Home.

1 The Chenev Contage’s serall-
sawn riling, simulated strciur-
ol members, overlunging edves,
and bey window—ll remindvcent
af Mavbeek's Boke House, Win-
freld Scotr "Duke ™ Wellington
Pitotn, 1962, BAHA Arclives.

signs caught Lthe imagi-
nation of the public.

Early in 1902 the.
George Boke House
on lower Panoramic
Way was completed.
Designed by May-
beck, it featured many
elements reminiscent
of a Swiss chalet:
scrollwork, timbers
that simulated exposed framing, and overhanging eaves.
In 1902, the Boke House, on its bare hillside, would
have heer visible from afar, and it may have seemed
the perfect stylistic solution for a hillside building lot.
The Swiss chalet was, in fact, suggested by the Hillside
Club as such, and Charles Keeler included a photograph
of the Boke House in his book The Sintple Home (1904).
Two subsequent houses were built by others using the
Boke House plans: in Oakland and in Washington slate.

But the Boke House seems to have inspired nu-
merous interpretations, as well—houses that not only
embody the chalet spirit, but also repeat some of the
distinctive characteristics of the Boke House. The
Cheney Cottage of 1902 was the first (other than a house
built simultaneously next door to the Boke House by its
builder, A.H. Broad) to emulate the Boke House. As in
the original, the Cheney Cottage is entered by stairs and
porch with scroll-sawn railings crossing the front fa-
cade, and its applied “timbering” reflects the structure.

Where the Cheney Cottage might it into the ar-
chitectural history of Berkeley was long an open ques-
tion. Before the discovery of the contract notice it was
even conjectured to be a Stick style house of the 1870s.
1t now seems cbvious, even with its gray-green paint,
that it is a reflection of the Arts and Crafis Movement in
Berkeley. Carl Ericsson, the builder, went on to design
other Boke House-inspired chalets in Berkeley, includ-
ing his own house of 1909, and A.H. Broad designed at
least one more, as well.
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Thanks for Your Membership Support — LPO has a Reprieve

HEN the Spring Newsletler went to press, ques-

tions about the status of Berkeley’s Landmarks
Preservation Ordinance (I.PO) were mounting. All in-
dications pointed to a City Council that might vote to
reduce the LPO’s preservation provisions—buekling
under the pressure of today's “teardown™ economics that
are pushing for rapid redevelopment of both commer-
cial and residential properties.

However, during the Summer days of June and July,
a strong expression of support for the LLPO’s broad in-
tent and protections emerged, causing the City Council
to take pause. In July the Council tabled the proposed
amendments.

Perhaps most significantly, it was the Landmarks
Preservation Commission, ably chaired by Jill Korte,
that unanimously voted (o urge the Council to uphold
the LPO, not to adopt previously suggested changes,
and to seek outside independent counsel before taking
any further steps. Before its vate, the Cormnmission heard
compelling testimony from citizens, including BAHA
members.

Because of BAHA’s membership base, BAHA was
able to turn to Susan Brandt-Hawley, a preeminent Cali-
fornia preservation attorney, who made the firm case,

on behalf of BAHA, that the long-standing protections
provided by the LPO could not be reduced without full
public discussion and review as provided by the Cali-
fornia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The author-
ity of her representation had a resounding effect.

In addition, Mike Buhler, Regional Attorney for
the National Trust for Historic Preservation, and Cindy
Heitzman, Executive Director of the California Preser-
vation Foundation, each sent letters of concern to the
City Council,

And, finally, Lucinda Woodward, representing
Califarnia’s Office of Historic Preservation, wrote [0
the Mayor and Members of the City Council recom-
mending that “the city council [sic] direct staff to en-
gage the services of an outside, impartial consultant
preservation planner with the aim of preparing one docu-
ment for public review.”

Certainly, as the year unfolds, it is critical that
BAHA remains engaged with the Commission and the
City Council, and learns more about preservation plan-
ning programs in other cities and their respective ordi-
nances. In the meantime, a thank-you to the BAHA
membership for your support—a support that is vitally
needed.
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Haste Street Revived. A lypotherical solution fo saving three small, landmarked houses, The Waolley House {1876),
the Cheney House (c. 18853), und the Cheney Cotage (1902} as they wonld fook placed o the 2300 black of Huste
Streer, west of the Anna Head School. Rendering by Guillermo Rosselle. 2000,
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The spire af the presert Nikolai Kirche (14853) dominured the sieline in s 1900 post-curd view of

DOBELN, SAXONY

Débeln, us it still does inday.

Observations on Historic Preservation Activity in an East German Town

FORTHE PAST several years, I have had the pleasure and opportunity to pay
an annual visit to a small town in what had been East Germany, and to see its
historic buildings being brought ta life again in this optimistic period since the
1989 reunification of Germany. From the Weisse Taube—an old country haotel
(1857) on the edge of town with a traditional Biergarren where one can dine on
balmy evenings under the canopy of ancienl chestnut trees—I have enjoyed ex-
ploring (he town of Dbeln, picturesquely set in a valley along the Freiberger
Mulde, and discovering its eclectic mix of architectural styles.

Déheln (pop. 23,000) was founded in the 900s, but its appearance is not that
of a town from the Middle Ages. Although there are still a few very early houses,
the town has been rebuilt many times. What impressed me at first sight was that
Débeln looks much like a realization of the mythical and elusive American Small
Town. Most of Ditbeln’s
residential buildings are
from the Griinderzeir, or
Victorian, era, and with

The Rennuisonce-stvle Rathaus, or
Ciry Helt, was complered in 1912,

This impressive five-story, slute-shingled apartinent fouse from about
1905 averfaoks the circular Stern Platz and has been beautifully
restored during the past year,

1t has been inspiring to waich the town pull itself
together afier so many years of neglect under the pre-
vailing conditions that existed before 1989. When L ar-
rived in 1999, work was we!l underway and many build-
ings, including the impressive city hall {1910-12), had
already been restored. Still, as in other eastern towns
and cities, there were many buildings that had not seen
a paint brush or hammer and nail since before the sec-
ond World War. Now, each year, more of these crum-
bling buildings are revived. However, to this American’s
eyes, the natural sand-plaster finishes wore an intrigu-
ing patina of age that is ofien lacking in the fresh and
festive array of colors that these buildings now sport!

As here in Berkeley, the rehabilitation of old build-
ings in Dobeln has had mixed results. Some buildings
have indeed been made livable again, but with a loss of
their defining historic features, such as original windows
and weathered tile roofs. But many others have been
restored with care. Most of the Victorian buildings now
look as splendidly grand as they did when new. Two
schools from the 19th Century are still in use and have
been restored, Viciorian interiors and stained glass win-
dows intact. The Stadtbad (1936), an indoor swimming
pool with fanciful statuary, re-opened last year after res-
toration; and the Capitol movie theater (1937), long va-
cant, is being adaptively remodeled as offices and shops,
with its historic facade preserved.

Although several areas of town seem to enjoy the
protection of “historic district” status, there have been a
few significant losses in the past six years, notably the
Bachschenke, a roadside tavern from 1838; the gas
works (c. 1904), a romantic ruin inhabited by pigeons;
and the fomer chocolate factory (1922}, a sirikingly un-
usual industrial building torn down two years ago Tor a
parking lot. Some buildings—especially many of the
factories which stood empty and exposed to the elements
after the machinery was removed from them afier the
war—may have been too far gone Lo save, and a devas-
tating flood in 2002 severely damaged the foundations
of other buildings necessitating their demalition.

Nevertheless, Dibeln is to be congratulated. Not
only has much been done in the years since 1989 to re-
habilitate its buildings, but, in addition, historic preser-
vation has been an important component of Dobeln’s
renaissance. The historic charac-
ter of the town has been restared,
hightighted, and promoted, As the
crowning achievement, there are
plans afoot to bring back the
Pherdebafin, a horse-drawn

their brick facades crisply outlined with light-colored or-
namentation, they bear an uncanny resemblance to the
buildings in Walt Disney’s nostalgic “Main Street”™! The
quantity and quality of Dabeln’s Grinderzeit buildings
is a source of pride, emphasized in the town’s promo-
tional material. In addition, there are wonderful build-

ings from the early 20th century, often with touches of

Jugendstil, and a number of public buildings from the
1920s and *30s distinguished by their curved lines and a
hint of modernity.
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The Clemens Shokoluaden Fabr
distinctive mrrered corner building (1938) uf the “Grossfuss™ factory hus been preserved,

?«' E i 4

ik (1922), with its ornmumental gubles, hos been tom dow, while the

sireetcar system removed {rom
service in 1923. Sections of track
still remain embedded in the
cobblestone streets downtown. In
a few years, Dobeln may be
known far and wide for its
Pherdebahn, as San Francisco is
known far its cable cars!

—Anthonty Briice, Executive Director
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GOINGS-ON ABOUT TOWN

For our next issue, please alert BAHA ro items of interest to inclide
in "Goings-on About Teoen by calling the office ar 841-221 orwriting
i bl @berkelevheriinpe.con: (BAHA's new e-mail address).
And...please do check “BAHA News" (BAHA's Web-Blog) vegulariy!
G 102 huip:ffberkeleyherituge.compveblog/baha_news.himl,

» New color Downtown. Have you noticed the Shattuck
Apartments Building (James W. Plachek, 1921), City
of Berkeley Landmark No. 45, at 2322 Shattucl Av-
enue lately? The scaffolding has come down to reveal
a magnificent paint job that accentuates the architec-
tural elements in a crisp, new way. With improvements
such as this, Downtown is looking better and better.

Tear-downs in Berkeley? When the 1880 AW,
Pattiani-designed Campbell House at 2848 Derby
Street sold earlier this year, we eagerly anticipaled its
restoration. It is one of only a handful of 19th Century
structures remaining in the Claremont district. Its gin-
gerbread had been hidden under a coating of stucco
since the 1920s, but its interior was intact. The
Whitham House (Pattiani, | 889) at 2198 Blake Street
(featured on BAHA's *Berkeley 1890™ tour) is a mir-
ror-image twin and eould have been the model for re-
constructing missing elements. We suggested this to
the new owners' architect, who visited the BAHA of-
fice, and explained the building’s significance and its
listing on the State Historic Resources Inventory. What
a shock to discover, last month, that nothing remains
but a shell and the framing! The opportunity to resiore
this special house is gone. In a similar vein, the Howard
P. Landon House, a 1909 Berkeley brown-shingle at
2743 Woolsey Street recently sold and i, tog, has been

Boudrow House. Dansetla Thempseon, 2003,

PR - H ot (Al s LT e = .
The gutted Campbell Honse ar 2848 Derby Srreet, ax
photographed by Daniella Thompson on August 13, 2003,

gutted, with the front facade completely removed. A
local architect of note is involved, so one can hope for
the best, but it is sad that the historic fabric of neither
house was retained,

Along College Avenue, The Colonial Revival corner
building at Ashby is under the cover of a black veil,
undergoing a metamorphosis. A full restoration is
plannied: the stucco has already been removed and
original wood siding exposed, and aluminum windows
will be replaced, returning this early Elmwood com-
mercial building to prominence at its strategic loca-
tion. Nearby, the Elmwood Theater (A.W. Cornelius,
1014: alterations: A.A. Cantin, 1946), City of Berke-
ley Landmark No. 109, will re-open soon. Workmen
were seen recently carefully recreating the streamlined
curved overhang at the entrance. In celebration of the
planned re-opening in October of Ozzie's, perhaps the
last remaining drugstore soda fountain in the Bay Area,
the interior of the Elmwood Pharmacy (now the
Elmwood Health & Mercantile), in business at Col-
lege and Russell since the building was built (John A.
Bischoff, designer, 1921), is being refurbished. This
original space includes oak cabinets and paneling.

Boudrow-Beard House. The “veil” has been lifted
from another favorite building: the Queen Anne style
Boudrow House (Julius Krafft, 1889), City of Berke-
ley Landmark No,13, at 1536 Oxford Street. An in-
trigzuing new paint color will insure that this house
remains a north Berkeley visual landmark,
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WELCOME NEW MEMBERS ...
BAHA welcomes the following people who
have joined BAHA since the last News-
letter went out. Tell your friends about
BAHA and encourage them to join, too!
Mary Baxter Candy & Tom Simonen
Donna Harkness Mark Tarses
Judah L. Magnes Museum Chris Vicerra, Ir.
Linda Oliver
Joel Panzer

CONTRIBUTING
Sharon & Damon Darlin

...AND MEMEBERS RENEWED!

Betly Ames. Sheila Andres, Lo Arazi, Jahn Aronavici:

Barbora Flelcher Barbour, Petmy Bemnes, fane Burrett, Chantal Beckmunn-Garcin.
Hupton Denediel, Dorathes Denncy, Stephen Barn, Linda Bredford, Roland Brandel,
Annie-May de Brusson, Laurie Bripht. Siegiried E Brockmans. Clalve van Brunt, Cheis-
1apher Buckley. Smtford Bucklzy:

forbora H. Codwatader, Californin State Limry, Toanne Cenler, Nancy Curleton,
Eteaner Curpigus. Dorgiee Casielin, Jonathen Chester, Sydney Clemens, Themas w.
Cline & Burbara 1. Muyzy. Diuny Collins, Murguerite Conrud, K.& K. Cranney,
Melvin Dagovitz, Robert iJahlsitom, Philig Damall. Davenpor: & Van Young. I
{3uvidnlf & Shelicy Horwitr, Mory H. Dean, Tomie & Rick Dishsiea

Lesile Ensterdny, Mikion R, Bdelin, Ted Ediin, Pm & Miclhoa} Edwenls;

Susan Felix, John Ferer. Borbara B, Floyd, Acesiics Foni-Lewis, Nancy H, Francis,
Constanee Fraser, Jeri Frasers

Phylls & Phil Gole. Shifr Guman, Gule Garcin, Pisil Gundper, GeorgeAnn Garms,
Jane & Leo Gaspurdon. Terry Geiser & Junet Murk. Robort Geering. Sumanthi H.
Gurvage, Ann Gilkerson, Blnke Gilmore, Mrs. Clive Ginoes, Judith & Alex Glnss, Su-
san Goldsiein, Hilary & Daniel Goldsting, Evelyn B. Geodman, Biane £ fohe Gossard,
Gretehen & Righan) Grant, irs Greenberg-Smith, Judith Patache Gregory, Heather Grey,
Cloire Griffith, Greliehen & Thomus Grswold, Lillizn Walli Grove, Pabb & Pegpy
Grunluml, Elien Gupther, Dally Gurrolu

Robertn Hodley, Erie Hosloop, Naeey Hair, Bronwyn Hell, Mecygrcis Hall, Duryl
A Hulverson, H. Bantie, Janice Hunty, Kuy Hurdy, Mark Harpainiee, Hegh W. Hurris,
Jnect Horis, Jodith Horle & Susan Blerd, George Harwer, Camlyn & Lany Hansough,
Rahen Hastam, Holly Hangh, Trish & Tony Hawthame, Harvey Helfgad, DI Hellendale,
Decky Hemann, Lowise Hendry, Randi Herman, Dinie Hesh, Fredarick C. Hurte
Winifned Hess, Yalerde Hesinkveld, Stelta Hester, Harry T, Hicks, Ward Hill, Barhar
Hisehivr, Robert Hofmunn, 7.V, Hefmenn, Jersi Holon, Gury Holleway, Kares & Rob-

ert Hul . Basharn Holzrichier, Inpe S,
Hortop, Rekerns Horten & Mary Mushusta, Col-
legn Houolihen, Jeequeline Heosh, Anthony
Howletl, Ano Flughes, Masion & Jeff Hunt,
Chareme Hunter, Rick Hunter & Digng Demgler,
Ruieer Hurat, Knthlean Hutchinsos, Seve Hyske;
Darbora & Andrew imbrie, Seadm & Georpe
Ennes. Judy Isuksen:

Ira Jucknils. Amy & Swven Jacohsohn, Don
Jucnhus, Dwight Infee, Kusum Irene lois, Samb
JnlTe, Glen Jarvis, Lee Jester, William Jetion, Fanet
. Inhnsan. Murcin Johnson & Thomas Blackod

M. Miichelt, Mauresn Michell- Wise, Madsline
& Jow Mixer, Juhn Modall, Sudhish Muhindroa,
Mary Montali, Rosnlind T, Mo, Hirogli
Maorimato, David Morris, Jozn Morow.Thomes
Murmy. Paut Myers & Marn Jesus Apuilo;
Doris Nassiry. Anito Naven. Colleen Nelf,
Jugnite & 1B, Neitds. Mrs, Wiltiam Nivholsen,
Chiris Noll. Burt Nomll, Mark Edwin Nosis:
Rompey O'Connell, Melanie O'Hare. Mr, &
Mrs. Rohen M, Oliver, Grein Olsen, Koren H,
Dlsom, Susen Cipsvig, Lomaine Osmundsan;

Ed Iohnslen, Riia Jones. Rabert Wasren Jones.
Sormh Jones, Bruce D, Judd:

June KudEsh, Parivis Kales, Mickuel Kotz Judith
Kays, Roben Kehimann, Colette Kelley, Meg A
Kellopg, Rebent Kelly & June Heoberman, Tersi
Relly-Stewart & Milton G. Stewart, Mury T, Kenl,
Margaret R Keough. Angele Kenes, June Bem
Gipris Smith King, Margaret Khein, Woly
Klemehuk. Frederic Knapp, Ser P Knight, Klam
Komaorous-Towey, Doreas & Ted Knwolski,
Debomh & Alen Kropp, Efleen Kumetat:

Molly Lombert, Maory Lurmprech. Lundmaork
Heritage Feundalion, Ruth LandsholE. [onadd
Earsen, Marsho Kay Lehmer Kevin Lovine,
Audrey & Normun Lewak, [r, Ann-si LE Eva M.
Lizharmann, Rebentn Loach, Ron & Maory Loar,
Jonathen Legan, Vivion & Affredn Lopez., Mary
Lomin, Beenn Love, Marpareita Lavell, Berbur
Lundiwrg, Dione & Luslis Lynch, Ann & Heb
Lynn. Sue Lyon;

Kothy & Gerry hMacCleliand, Mary E.
MacDanalkd, Anne Madden, Andrew Mana,
Vincent Mursh, Michefle Martin, Rebert A, Mar-
tin, Pumeale Marvel, Bifl Mastin, Suzanne Masurst,
“Theresa & Devid Mathiasmeier, Ann May &
Rodney Frezland. Mary K. MceConnon. Yvonne
& John McCredie, Kerry MeDuniel, Christine
MuKinley, Syfvin C. MeLaughtn, Duncsn
Melend, Menique & James MeNi Rosemarie
Melteynotds, Geraldine MceTigue. Donna
Muehricn, Mr. & Mrs, Haward C. Mel, Sosan
Messina, Anne Meyer, Chiristing Meyern [di & Les
Michuel, Edna C. Michener, Anne Middleton &

Kathy Pacheco, Fron Packard, Mark Pagz,
FFrancine di Palma, Shitley Pu, Betty Parsons.
Gty Parsons, Andrew Parns, Lonen W, Panridge,
Kenneth 1. Poteiss, Georpe Pasty,Yape Posthumus;
Meredith Sobini. Linds Schaeht & John Gaps,
Gibhs M. Smith, Georps Starr. Hyshkn Sirnss:
Tarpall & Talbert, Alice Taylor. Anng M. Tay-
Yo, Christine Taylor, Edie Darknell Taylor, LI
‘Tnylor, Dnvid Tedee, Lisn Tilus, Frances Townes;
Jerry Wochtel, Sara M. Wages. Alets Spmulding
Wallece, Juson Wallnce, Rebieecn Woring. Diann
Wellum, Paty & Howard Whisler, Athe Witkin;
Daan Yabuld. Casol Yokal, Yovino-Young;
Alisan Zaremiin & Dan Marvin. Bill Zerkle,
COMTRIBUTING

Deity Ausiin, Buthora & David Domield. Sally
Freetman, Kathryn HilL Skern Eorol, 1l Kore
& Peter Buspess, Kathiz Longinoni. Michuel
MeCmchennfMeCutichenn Consteuction, MeKay
Architecture, Jenn & Roger Moss, Edward
Manges, Elsie Revenaegh, Susie Schevill, Sally
& Herard Sklar, Cerolyn & Marvin Smoller,
Jerry Sulliger. Evie & Gardon Wozniek
PATRON

Tuliet Lamant und Phil Price

LA

Giene: Rerehfi, Mary & Robert Miller, Mr. & Mrs, Ve S C e

You can join BAHA—
Send form to P.O. Box 1137, Berkeley, Cal.

ADDRESS

ZIP

TELEPHONE

E-MAIL

I want to
be ACTIVE!

] $25 Individaal

{

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

| Special interests
| or talents:
I

I

I

I

I

|

\

Right to cast 1 vote per
election.Receipt of guarterly
Newslerter. Member discount
on 2 tickets to each House
Tour. Discount on most books
hought through BAHA.

] $50 Household
Right o cast 2 votes per elec-
tion. Receipt of quarterly
Newsletter, Member discount
on 4 tickets to each House
Tour. Discount on most books
bought through BAHA,

[}$100 Contributing
Same benefits a5 Household,
plus 2 half-priced tickets to the
Annual Spring House Tour.

(15250 Sustaining
Same benefits as Household,
plus 4 half-priced tickets to the
Annual Spring House Tour.

[ 185 student/Low-Income

Includes same benefits as Indi-
vidual and Household categories.

14500 Patron

Same benefits as Sustaining,
plus six half-priced tickets to
the Annual Spring House Tour.

IEI $ 1000 Benefactor
same benefits as Patron, plus

ten half-priced tickeis to the
Annual Spring House Tour.
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TWO SUMMER. EVENINGS
with

CHARLES BIRNBAUM, rasLa. rAAR
President, The Cultural Landscape Foundation, ‘Washington, D.C.

OPPOSITE. THE. GOLDEN GATE.
BB B P BB B R

AN Ice CREAM SocIAL AND TALK
at the Town & Gown Club (Bernard Maybeck, 1899)
Thursday, August 9

Starting at 7:30, Talk at 8:00

A RAmMBLE, WiTH GUIDES
into, through, and above Strawberry Canyon
Friday, August 10
Starting at 5:30

Panoramic Hill, led by Gray Brechin
University Botanical Gardens, led by Eilen Petersen
Strawberry Creek—Its Sources, led by Robin Freeman

- Monument Hill Vista, led by Michael Kelty-

e
A FARMERS' MARKET BARBEQUE
at the Haas Club House (William W. Wurster, 1 959)
Friday, August 10

Starting at 7:00

For more Information, call 510-841-2242 or visit ww.herkeieyheritnge.ccm

/¥ P& Please make reservations for OPPOSITE THE. GOLDEN GATE using this form.
Don't forget to enclose a stamped self-addressed envelope to expedite your order!
Send to: BAHA + P.O. Box 1 37+ Berkeley + California 94701

B, Ice Cream Social & Talk @ 320, number of tickets:
%\ Rambie @ $10, number of tickets:

Setectone: [} Panoramic Hill ‘ (] Botanical Garden
| Strawberry Creek Source [J Monument Hilt Vista

%\ Farmers Market Barbeque @ $30, number of tickets: ___
NAME(S) . ‘ TELEPHONE

ADDRESS ZIP

™ s .. « 4 n e e maA



AT THE MoUTH OF STRAWBERRY CANYON AND. THE. BASE OF PANORAMIC HILL:

ANYON RQAD winds its way into Strawberry Can-

yon. The history of road predates neighborhood de-
velopment, and reflects early Spanish mf‘luence with its origi-
nal spelling: "Cafion Road." = '

Note the vegetation pattern: bafren'hillside where cattle
starting grazing in the 1850s and continued into the 20"
century. Lush foliage near Strawberry Creek is hidden in
the steep ravine.

Rieber House. Courtesy E. Sotelo.
Formerly a single family house at 15 Canyon Road, designed by Ernest Coxhead, built in 1904,
for Professor of Logic Charles Rieber and his wife the portrait painter of some renown (painted
Albert Einstein, Thomias Mann, Phoebe Hearst, Mrs. Herbert Hoover) Winifred Rieber.

THE CREEK, THE RAVINE, AND THE WATERFALL .

HE CREEXK can be found by the growth
of luxurious coast live oaks. Strawberry
Creek is hidden in a steep ravine.

Frederick Law Olmsted's musings on the creek:
‘Here water stands near the surface of the
ground during the entire summer, even when it
disappears further down the arroya, and trees
in the rear shade the undergrowth, which is
consequently thick, intricate, luxuriant, rich, and gracef‘ul campletely sheltermg the visitor from
the sun, and all the ordinary untidiness of the surface of the ground is lost.”

1911 photo. [The Bancroft Library ?]

Bancroft Steps g]onfxed the pedestrian experience from Piedmont ‘Way up the hill and connecting
aesthetically and practically to Orchard Lane further upl'ull in the two subdivisions of University
Terrace and University Hill. Hillside development was minimal prior to the 1900s,

Co-Ep CANYON.

THE CONSTRUCTION OF MEMORIAL STADIUM,
L =& A " R

Koeber
postcard,
c. 1908

SECTION of Strawberry Creek
with waterfalls' wound its way
‘hrough the site of the present Stadium.

s| BAHA
Archives, gift
of R. Wesell.

HE STADIUM was built into the hillside at
the mouth of the canyon and the creek was
culverted,

CANYON DEVELOBMENT INCLUDED TREE PLANTATIONS. *

REE PLANTING is visible in the dlstance on the-other

side of Strawberry Canyon in the area now known as Tight-
wad Hill. A
1 Canyon Road was built for Sén Frapeisco Art Dea]er Frederic
Torrey in 1906 and designed by Ernest Coxhead.

Note the Beaux—Arts stairway _and liejgeining'.wall in the front,
and that the back of house can be seen from Mosswood Lane

LTHOUGHjthe earliest houses were bmlt of redwood
shingles, after the Berkeley fire of 1923 many homes
were built with stucco.

Lower reaches of Panoramic Hill are listed on the National
Register of Historic Places.

Only residential neighborhood in Berkeley that is listed on
the Natlonal Register of Historic Places.

Period of significance is from 1895 to 1941 in various stages
and mamfestatlons of the Bay Area Tradition.

Gl LA Representative architecture includes Shmgie. Bungalow/
Family home of architect Walter Steilberg Craftsman. Mission/Spanish; Colomal Revwal. Beaux-Arts.
(1922) The Steilberg compound includes
several garages, a cottage above a garage,
and a Fabricrete cottage in the rear of the
lot. Daniella Thompson, 2005,

Since the north side fire of 1923 Panoramlc Hill is among
most extensive surviving Arts and Grafts hillside neighbor-
hoods in Berkeley

PEDESTRIAN INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPED
BY WARREN CHENEYIN 1910,

HIS Beaux-Arts public pedestrian staircaee

connects with Bancroft Steps below whi¢h
together formed a pract:cal route to the Uni-
versity. . . - :
Architectural dé‘t‘a'ﬂ'{ includes benches, balus-
trades, corner piers, and numerous landings.
Named Orchard Lane by way of reference to
the former apricet orchard on the hillside. Listed
as a City Landmark

Orchard Lane, Elizabeth Crews, 1974,



MosswoobD LANE. .

A well-worn path that existed as “Stockade Lane" before houses were built. 4 Mosswood Lane is
the Mediterranean-style cottage designed by Steilberg and built of Fabricrete, a patented material
developed by Steilberg in response to the devastating 1923 Berkeley Fire. Houses that back up to
Mosswood Lane include the Coxhead-designed house at 1 Canyon Road: Julia. Morgén—designed
house at 1 1 Mosswood Road: Julia Morgan-designed house at 9 Canyon Road; Frank Lloyd ‘Wright-
designed house at 13 Mosswood Road; and 33 Canyon Road.

MosswooD ROAD WITH STRAWBERRY CANYON

IN THE BACKGROUND. -

Mosswood Road is on the south side of the canyon and the
north side of Panoramic Hill. As its name suggests, there is
an abundance of moss clinging to the native coast live oaks.

1'1 Mosswood Road (Julia Morgan, 1929) was built for
Willis Jepson, who developed the first taxonomy of Cali-
fornia native plants.-Note ironwork configured in an her-
barium theme flanking the arched front door.

Parsons House. BAHA Archives.

29 Mosswood Road was the home of Marion Parsons, designed by her friend and nexghbor Walter
Steilberg. Mrs. Parsons moved from her John Hudson Thomas-remodeled home at 21 Mosswood
after her husband Edward Parsons died and after the stadium construction. Both Marion and Ed-
ward Parsons were early key figures in the Sierra Club. In memory of Mr. Parsons’ efforts to save
Hetch Hetchy, Parsons Lodge was built in Yosemite.

T'he steep gable roof of the home at 37 Mosswood Road is in the background. Home of Prof‘essor
of Cilassics James Allen and his wife Amelia Allen, Mrs. Allen became an avid birdwatcher while
living in this cak woodland. Among her publications is “Birds of a Berkeley Hillside” published in
The Condor.Just beyond the Allen House is what is now known as the University's Ecological
Study Area. In 19185, Mrs. Allen described it thus: “On the eastern side, our lot is bounded by the
University campus, where no shooting is allowed at any season.”

CoTTAGES ON CANYON RoAD.

Located near Strawberry Creek, when it was still an open channel,
the shallow sireet setback allowed the four special, rustic dwellings
:1908-24) to be as close to the creek as possﬂ)]e

AN EARLY SWIMMING P00L IN THE RUSTIC And romantic

CANYON SETTING. . =~ sojourns in the
fa Canyon...

A University swimming facility for men was located
n the bucolic canyon o

@ 2007 Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association.

Strawberry Canyon, 1922,
- berkeleyheritage.com

RAHA Archivec. vift nf B Wecoll

The Berkeley Architectural HeritageAssociation &°
The American Society of Landscape Architects, Northern California Chapter
present a program of

CULTURAL LANDSCAPES
B,

PANORAMIC HILL
an Evening Ramble led by Gray Brechin

Geological Mup of a Partion of the Berkeley Hills by Amilrew Luwson and Charles Paluche, 1900, HAHA Archives
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- e © '200:_7,B_efkele_y Archltectural ,ng_'itgge Association,

y berkﬁléyhexﬁtagg,_c'pm. L

“Gewhipleat Map of u Portion of the Berkeley Hiits by An&}z’ni-za o il 'c;.qugfrnfach.é. 19060, BAHA Archives




A pool on Strawberry Creek in Ihe :
... Botanical Garﬂen. Photo  from. '
caver of 1977 Oakland Telephone :

' DU‘ECIOI:)’ '

The Boz‘amcal Garden relaca ey is re inthe 19205, - ]arge sectlou gwen over to Gahforma nétlve p]ants The Botamcal Garden is sald ‘to he ‘the Dldest '
_ e TheBancmﬁlerary[?]”' D umversﬂ:ybotamca] garden. e i '
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The Berkeley Archltectura] HentageAssoc:atmn & L
The Amer:can Soc1ety of Landscape Archltects,.Narthern Cahfarmal

Genlogical Map afa Portion.of the qcrktfcyﬁ‘r‘ft_r by Antdrew Lawsan aid Charles Palache, 1900, BAHA Archiver




ﬁom the crests. af the hill, down 101 the alluwal flatlands '-Deer elk, i : _ ; .
‘bear, and mountain: lions were abundant in'thé hills. Salmon and " .- One of the several “rustic bridges” on

“trout spawned in the upper reaches of the creeks. —Report from the Cmnp:ﬁ BAHA Archives, Palache Jamily '
-Office of Environment; Health ‘and Safety at U.C. Berkeley, p. 9 album. gift of Judith Peloche Gregorr ™ build a stadium happened in the 331'1}’1 920s.

existed up until the 1 9 3 Os The canyon now suffers from impervious and/ar unnatural surfaces-
buildings, parking lots, lawns, and walkways Dynamltmg the hillside and culvertmg the creek to
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OCT 25—BAHA LECTURE

“The Eccentrics of 18th Century Downtown Berke-
ley” by Richard Schwartz. 7:30 at Berkeley City Club.
$15. Reception and book-signing will follow at the
McCreary-Greer house, More info: 510-841-2242,

OCT 28—0HA HOUSE TOUR

The historic San Antonio neighborhood is the focus
of the self-guided tour sponsored by Oakland Heri-
tage Alliance with the San Antonio Hills Neighbor-
hood Association. See fine examples of 19th and early
20th century house styles.1 to 5:30pm. $30 in ad-
vance, $35 day of tour, $25 for OHA members. In-
cludes reception with refreshments. To volunteer:
510-763-9218. Visit: info@oallandheritage.org.

NOV i—BAHA LECTURE

*Observations: The San Francisco Bay Area and its
Built Environment” by Susan Dinkelspiel Cerny. 7:30
at Berkeley City Club. $15. Reception and book-sign-
ing will follow at the McCreary-Greer house.

NOV 3 — BHS WALKING TOUR

“Lower Codornices Creek” led by Susan Schwartz
with Drew Goetting (Restoration Design Group) and
Richard Register (Ecocity Builders).10 am. Berke-
ley Historical Society members 8, general $10. One
B in a series of tours, running throngh Dec. 1. Call 510
§  848-0181 or visit www.cityofberkeley.info/histsoc/

BERKELEY ARCHITECTURAL HERITAGE ASSCCIATION

P.O. BOX 1187, BERKELEY, CGALIFORNIA 94701

mailed on: OCT22

CALENDAR oF EVENTS

NOV 11-BAHA LECTURE & HOUSE
RECEFPTION

*Julia Morgan: her Unique Place in American Archi-

tecture™ by Mark A. Wilson. Sunday Afternoon, 2:00,

at Julia Morgan's Seldon Williams House, $25. Arare

opportunity to visit one of Julia Morgan’s most beau-

tiful private homes. berkeleyheritage.com

OCT-MAR—BHS EXHIBIT

“Berkeley in the 1930s™ at Berkeley History Center,
1931 Center Street. Thursday, Friday, Satwrday, 1-4.
www.cl.berkeley.ca.us/histsoc/

BAHA board members Sally Sachs, President Carrie Olsor, Anne
Wagley, and Tim Hansen ar BAHA'S booth ar the September 8
Solano Stroll. Photo by Daniella Thompson.

Nonprofit Org,
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ANNUAL PRESERVATION AWARDS NUMBER

@MESSAGE FROM THE _ pr_JEIDENi)j

e : BAHA members have had a busy summer, kicked off by our wonderful Spring House Tour
Berkelep City Club

C ONTENT 5 |BerkeleyCiy Club Swimming Pul “Among the Rocks” in the Thousand Qaks area of North Berkeley. Thank you to all members
3 New Books page2 2007 Preservation Awards page 8 who came—we love to see you, and we appreciate your s'upporl.
President’s Message page3  Past President’s Message page 14 We are already planning our next tour for late spring 2008, and have settled on one of
Strawberry Canyon Summer Sojourn page4  Membership News page 15 Beﬁk.d;)"s rflfoili.tunnxg,tgc ne;ghbm:hgc;ds: theWBen\Jﬂnue / Hll:ﬁgfsﬂsgcoéigd:srénglii ;st ;:ﬁ:rsﬁ
Fall Lecture Series page&  Calendar of Events page 16 rich in beautiful Arts and Crafts period homes. We can promise hey g

the inside as the outside. We have not settled on the date yet, but can use your help, If you live in
the neighborhood, or just love it as we do and want to participate in the early planning—choos-
ing the homes, researching, elc,—please contact the BAHA office and let Anthony or Lesley
know you wauld like to be involved, 841-2242,

COVER: The Seldun Willivans House on Claremont Bivd., designed by Julic Morgan in 1928, will be the seming for an afterinon reception and
iformual ik by Mark Wilsn, author of Julia Morgan, Architect of Beauty, on Sunday, Nevember 1. Anthony Bruce photo, 2004,
ABOVE: "Berkeley Women's Ciry Club” and " Swinming Pool, Berkeley Wowen's Ciry Club ", vintage postcards courtesy Anthony Brice. The

Berkeley Ciry Club will be the
3 NEW BOOKS by BAHA Members

site of BAHA leciures on
AL

Ociober 25 and November 1.

BB eyt e e

Great news from the City Planning Department: there is a new City of Berkeley Land-
marks Preservation Commission secretary in town. Terry Blount comes to our city from West

Boarp oF DiRecToRs

Carrie Olson,

Prexiidens
Jane Edginton,

Progrm View-Prealfonr
Anne Wagley,

Preservarion Vice-Preidem
Jerry Sulliger,

Cosgrenite Secreniry
Stephanie Manning,

Tivesurer

Lausie Bright

Susan Cerny

Susan Chase
Richard Ehrenberger
Steve Finacom
James Grandison
Austene Hall

Tim Hansen

Michael Kelly

John McBride
Richard Pettler
Saliy Sachs

Arlene Silk

Janice Thomas
Daniella Thompson
STaFF

Anthony Bruce
Lesley Emmington Jones

Eii

Eccentrics, Heroes, and Cuttheoats

An Architectural Goidebook
1o Sun Francisco and the Bay
Area by Susan Dinkelspiel
Cerny, published by Gibbs
Smith Publisiter; Is an entirely
new arcliitectural guide 1o the
nine Bay Areu counties. The
new Guide is un indispens-
able resource for anyone—
both Culiforniu resident and
visitor alike—inreresied in the
built envivonment. Stsan and
her nvelve comribitors fuvve
compiled more than 2,000
enrries in over 100 ciries and
tovens and neighborhoods.
830 (320 BAHA niembers),
seiles v ineluded,

of Oid Berkeley by Richard
Seivwarrz, published by RSB
Books. It seems thar Berkelev hax
alweays been howe 1o colorful
characters, as Richerd tells in this
collecrion of siuries about unusual
Berkeleyans of tiee olden duys.
Included are John E. Bovd, tie
“Boss Baggape Buster of Becu-
tiful Berkeley;" Bill “The Dog
Mun" Henderson: Mury Tovwars-
end; Cupt. Thomus; und Emperor
Norton. 523 (520 BAHA mem-
bers), sales nex included.

Julin Morgnn, Architect of Beauty by
Mark A. Wilson, published by Gibls
Surith Publisher, with foreword by
BAHA member Lynn Forney Mc-
Murray, Julic Morgan s goddaugiier,
offers o fresh look ar America’s most
profific major wrchitect, The book is
swnptueously iflustreted with splendid
eolor plotograplis. 360 (§45 BAHA
members), sules 1av included,

To receive the member discount, you may purchase
these books at the BAHA Office on Thursday afternoons
(closed Oct. 25 and Nov. 1), and at the upcoming Fall
Lecture Series—see page 6 for more details.

Hollywood, and BAHA extends a hearty welcome. Terry stopped by the office recently to see
the Archives first hand with outgoing secretary Janet Homrighausen, who is retiring from the
department. Best to you, Janet.

The DAPAC (Downtown Area Plan Area Committee) has been meeting since 2006 to
present a draft plan to the city’s Planning Commission 1o replace the existing Downtown Advi-
sory Committee. Amazing that the current plan was readopted less than 5 years ago by the City
Council as part of the new General Plan. But now in their wisdom, some of the powers that be
think that a denser downtown with multiple buildings as tall as 20 stories 13 what residents of
Berkeley want—or will want. You may want to keep an eye on this, as well as the BRT plans to
run a rapid bus wiih dedicated lanes in each direction coming from QOakland on Telegraph into
the downtown on Shaituek, ending at University Avenue, It could be a very different looking
city-—both from the downtown looking out (no mare views of the hills or the Bay), and from the
rest of the city looking downtown. The new downtown area spans Hearst to Dwight Way, and
Martin Luther King to Oxford. This now includes residential areas with single family homes.
There is a long way to go yet because despite whatever plan the DAPAC approves, it will still zo
through a Planning Commission process before heading 10 Council. It will be a hot topic through-
out next year’s election season.

Other hot topics: The Stadium, which still has no plan for rewofit, the Memorial Oak
Grove adjoining the Stadium, Swrawberry Canyon and the continuing march of the Berkeley Lab
into the culiural open space of the Canyon, the nomination sent to the State Historical Resources
Commission 1o list the Berkeley High School Campus on the National Register of Historic
Places, the LPO referendum, and neighborhaods trying 1o retain their charm and character in the

face of developmenti nearby.
"’" .
Cﬁmﬂﬁ b

The BAHA Newsletter is published quarterly by the Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association and is sent to all members
of the Assaciation. Entire contents of this issue © 2007 by the Berkeley Architectural Meritage Association, PO. Box 1137,
Berkeley, California 54701. tel: 310-841-2242; e-mail; baha@herkeleyherilage.com; website: www.berkeleyheritage.com.

Carrie Olson, President

Prochived Jinte-Oct, 2007, Comriluting wriiers this issue: Anthowry Bruce, Jusie Edgingon, Lestey Emnringron, Wendy Morkel, Mary Lae Noonan, Daniellz Thempson
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FYOU MISSED the August Straw-
berry Canyon visit of Charles

Landscape Foundation, sponsored by
BAHA and the American Society of
Landscape Architects, Northern Cali-
fornia Chapter, then you missed a de-
lightful opportunity to learn of the
Historic Landscape Initiative. You also missed the en-
joyable rambles in the Canyon, led by Michael Kelly
{Monument Hill Vista), Linda Govan (Universiry Bo-
tanical Garden), Robin Freeman (Strawberry Cregh—
Its Sowrces), and Gray Brechin (Panoramic Hill), as well
as a delicious barbecue at Haas Club House (Wursler,
Bernardi & Emmons, 1959). These events, together with
the ramble last summer starting from the Memorial Qalz
Grove, co-sponsored by the California Native Plant
Society, East Bay Chapler, are BAHA endeavars to con-
tribute to an understanding of Strawberry Canyon as a
significant landscape that not only defines Berkeley’s
sense of place, but also that of the greater Bay Area,

Charles Birnbuum

The stark reality that Lawrence Berkeley National
Laboratory (LBNL), in association with a British Pe-
troleum (BP) contract, is planning to construct a new
building, the Helios Building (in excess of 160,000 gross
sq. ft.), on undeveloped land in the lower reaches of the
interior of the Canyon, with an additional new road and
parking lots, is cause for alarm. According to the LBNL
Long Range Development Plan this is only the begin-
ning. We know from such visionaries as Frederick Law
Olmsted, John Muir, Presidents Theodore Roosevelt and
Franklin Delano Roosevelt, Stephen Mather, Duncan
MecDuffie, Robert Sibley, and Sylvia McLaughlin, that
conservation of the natural world provides all commu-
nities with vital links to social and environmental health.
Certainly, the task of persuading LBNL and BP (i.e. the
University Regents) to respect Strawberry Canyon’s his-
toric relationship to our community, and the Canyon’s
fragile ecological limits and its many cultural amenities
(so that they might seek an alternative site for research
and development ventures) is a daunting challenge for
our local preservation community. A first step is to ap-

PAGE 4

preciate the Canyon's history.

The Canyon—directly opposite the
Golden Gate—has been a distinctive feature of
the Coast Range since before those historic days
in the 1850s when the University took owner-
ship of its valley and the grassy plain below,
Streamlets flowing down from its high ridges,
throngh a multitude of hillside outlets, all cre-
ate the Strawberry Creek headwalers, releas-
ing over 100,000 gallons of water a day. The
discovery of this water source led the nascent
College of California, then in Oalland, to se-
lect the site For what was to become the Uni-
versity and city of Berkeley.

In 1863, when Frederick Law Olmsted
conceived the University’s first campus plan and
laid out Piedmont Way as a gracious centerpiece
for his first American residential neighborhood,
the Berkeley Property, he aligned Piedmont
Way to intersect at the highesi northern point
with the mouth of Strawberry Creek, or the "ra-

at the end of Piedmont Way and Prospect Sireet,
it replaced the “gorge,” where the water once
pooled, and where the Hayward Fault runs
north-south along the Coast Range. The Sta-
dium (listed on the National Register) was, and
is, a Beaux Arts masterpiece and an amazing
| engineering feat, Yet, at that time, its placement
in the path of Strawberry Creek and in the midst
of an established area of distinguished homes
and gardens stirred many to protest bitterly.
(Today, Berkeley awaits the fatefu] decision of
Alameda County Superior Court Judge Miller
re: proposed Stadium expansion.)

The highlands of the Canyon, where the
dairy ranch was located, also evolved with time,
Early, conifers and eucalyptus irees were
planted along the top of the ridges. Most im-
portantly, in 1928, the University Botanical
Garden, which had been established on the main
campus in 1890, moved into the Canyon where

=~ it now occupies a fenced area of 25 acres, ex-

vine.” In his words, this was where the water SehenIMather name- hiniting over 12,000 different kinds of plants

" . sake of Mother Grve in
stands near the surface of the ground during E?;}.’L,A Comony

the entire summer” and where the ground “is
abundantly covered with native foliage of a very beau-
tiful character.” Olmsted applauded the view up “through
the goree and out upon the bay” and described a road
within the gorge that “fellows a stream of water from
the open landscape of the bay region into the midst of
the mountains it [the road] offers a greal change of scen-
ery within a short distance, and will constitute a unique
and most valuable appendage o the general local at-
tractions of the neighborhood.”

Until the 1920s, the Canyon remained largely a
natural resource, its highest grassy areas grazed by the
milk cows of the Such Family, and its oak and bay lau-
rel woodlands inspiring such California painters as Wil-
liam Keith, Edwin Deakin, and A. H. Broad. Early mem-
bers of the Sierra Club, many of whom lived either on
the Canyon’s south side on Panoramic Hill (listed on
the National Register), or nearby in the Berkeley Prop-
erty tract, often hiked up the old Canyon Road and ex-

" tolled the surrounding scenic beauty.

The first and most significant alteration to the Can-
yon occurred when the California Memorial Stadium
(Tohn Galen Howard, 1923) was built. Set upon landfill

representative the world's major floristic zones.
The largest area of the Garden is devoled to the
native plants of California. In 1930, the Mather Red-
wood Grove was planted with approximately 150 red-
woods in tribute to Stephen Mather’s work as founding
Director of the National Park Service, his early asso-
ciations with the Sierra Club, and to honor him as a Cal

‘graduate of the class of 1887. Then, in 1933, the Cali-

fornia Conservation Corps created the Redwood Grave
Amphitheater, as well as several bridges in the Canyon.

Of course, Ernest Orfando Lawrence's discovery
in 1931 of the ability to split an atom was the catalyst
for the initial wave of research and development facili-
ties on Berkeley’s hillsides. The first generation of build-
ings was known as the Radiation Laboratory, or the “Rad
Lab,” and were mainly out-of-sight. In the beginning,
the Canyon, itself, was sparsely sprinkled with a com-
plex of research buildings located on its north slope.
More recenily, with the ownership of the facilities turned
over ta the U.S. Department of Energy and renamed
LBNL, but still under the operation of the University
Regents, the land has been considered an industrial de-
velopment opportunity site.

{continued on poge 7)
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—— THREE AUTHORS T0 SPEAK —— ‘
Fall hecture Series in Julia Morgan Settings

You will not want to miss the three upcoming BAHA events, planned to introduce you to three newly-published
books written by BAHA members, and to give Yot the opportunity to hear the authors speak about their work, In
addition, the events will be held in two of Julia Morgan's most beautiful Berkeley buildings.

On October 25, a Thursday evening, local historian Richard Schwartz will talk
on “The Eccentrics of 19th Century Downtown Berkeley” at the Berkeley City
Club, one of julia Morgan’s great club buildings, designed in 1929, Richard is the
author of Berkeley 1900 and Earthguake Exodus. His latest book, to be featured at
this event, is Eccentrics, Heroes, and Cutthroats aof Old Berkeley, published by
RSB Books. It seems that Berkeley has always been home to colorful characters,
as Richard tells us in this collection of stories about unusual Berkeleyans of the
turn of the century. Included are John E. Boyd, the “Boss Baggape Buster of Beau-
tiful Berkeley” who was already concerned about the destruction of Berkeley's
historic buildings in 1900; Bill “The Dog Man” Hendersen, who operated a popu-
lar hot dog stand in downtown Berkeley; Mary Townsend, who refused to move
her house, which stood in the way of a proposed railroad right-of-way; and Captain
Thomas, who fired a cannon every 4th of July from his “fort” high above Buena
Vista Way. Learn more at Richard’s lecture and ask Richard to sign your copy of
his book at the reception immediately following, across the street at the McCreary-
Greer House (1901), BAHA's headquarlers,

The following Thursday, Nevember 1, we will meet again in the Berkeley City Club's
Drawing Room to hear Susan Dinkelspiel Cerny, long-time BAHA Board Member
and author of Berkeley Landmarks, speak on “Observations: The San Francisco
Bay Area and its Built Environment.” Susan’s new book is Az Archirectural Guide
to San Francisco and the Bay Area, published by Gibbs Smith Publisher. Susan will
share with us the perspective she gained on the Bay Area’s built environment through
several years of intensive focus: researching, writing, and editing this comprehen-
sive architectural guide that she compiled with her 12 contributors. Susan will be
pleased to sign your copy of her book at the reception at the McCreary-Greer House,
immediately following her talk. izt

Duniella Thatpson phomgropd.

On Sunday afternoon, November 11, we mave to Claremont Court and Julia
Morgan’s Seldon Williams House of 1928 (0 hear BAHA member and archi-
tectural historian, Mark A, Wilson speak on “Julia Morgan: her Unique Place
in American Architecture.”” Marl:'s exhaustive new hook, Julia Morgan, Ar-
chirect of Beauty, published by Gibbs Smith Publisher, and with foreword by
BAHA member Lynn Forney McMurray, Julia Morzan's goddaughter, offers a
fresh look at America’s most prolific major architect. The book is sumpluously
illustrated in color. Mark will speak with participants and sign copies of his
book during the reception. This is one of Miss Morgan’s great houses and the
3 main rooms will be open for viewing. If the weather permits, we will be able to
y wander in the tranquil rear garden. But why not let Mark Wilson Lel] us about
the house in this excerpt from his forthcoming book . . .

Amibren Ferseivn photwgaph
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The SELDON WILLIAMS HOUSE

A view from the secluded garden of the Seldon Williams House,
showing the Gothic trucery window and loggia witl fresco by Maxine
Albro, Berry Marvin photo, {984,

M\ NE of the most magnificent Ttalian Renaissance

Revival homes ever built in the East Bay is the
one Julia Morgan designed for Seldon and Elizabeth
Glide Williams, ( a daughter of Elizabeth A. Glide) . . .
Morgan designed this two-story, paldazzo style residence
in 1928, ...Upon entering the Seldon Williams House,
visitors are often overwhelmed by the beauty, warmth,

a Julia Morgan Masterpiece

and richness this residence radiates. The soaring two-
story eniry hall is overlooked by the second floor land-
ing above, while straight ahead the tall picture-glass win-
dow has a wonderful pattern of Moorish tracery across
the upper haif. A lovely della Robbia of Madonna and
child, chosen by Julia Morgan, graces the top of the wall
above this picture window...The most surprising room
in the house, and the favorite of most visitors, is the
sunroom at the south end. This open, light-filled space
is lit by floor-to-ceiling banded plateglass windows that
are framed by ornate Venetian Gothic tracery. These were
some of the first sliding glass windows in California,
engineered by Morgan so they could slide easily into
wall pockets to the left or right. The polished marble
floor in the sunroom has an unusual pattern of alternat-
ing dark and light tiles, and the furniture here is original
to the house... Adjacent to the sunroom, on the east end
of the house, is a handsome library with Gothic arched
niches of Australian gumwooed in the middle of each
wall, between the rows of built-in bookshelves, The
windows overlook the serenely landscaped backyard and
have tracery that repeats the Gothic arched motif...."

—excerpted from Mark Wilson, Julic Morgan, Architecr of Beaury,
Gibbs Smith Publisher, 2007.

Strawberpy Canuon Sojourn
continued from page 5

There is a true need to document
and compile the many facets of Straw-
berry Canyon's culturat landscape. Since
the August visit of Charles Birnbaum
there have been a couple of actions taken
to support this direction. This Septem-
ber the Northern Alameda County Group
of the Sierra Club voted unanimously to
endorse protection of the Canyon. Be-
cause of its historical connection with the
Sierra Club and because of its status as a
prime and central open space in Berke-
ley, the No. Alameda Co. Group of the
Sierra Club supports, in concept, protec-
tion of Strawberry Canyon and its des-
ignation as a cultural landscape.

In addition, Prof. Robin Free-
man of Merritt College has offered
a course this fall with the purpose
to focus on values of Strawberry
Canyon “to explore Strawberry
Canyon ecosystemn and watershed
function, historic, and cultural and
modern land uses, architecture and
current land issues” (ENVT #40).
This class has been meeting at
BAHMA's headquarters in the
MecCreary-Greer House and will re-
convene for another session next se-
mester. All are welcome.

A 1922 Sojourn into Srrawberry Cunyenn.
Cuouertesy af Richord Wesell,




2007 BAHA PRESERVATION AWARD WINNERS

ON Thursday, May 25, BAHA members and award recipients gathered for BAHA’s 33rd Annual Membership Meet-
ing at the Fidelity Building (Walter H. Ratcliff, Jr.,1925) in downtown Berkeley, which is vacant and awaiting
restoration and a new use. After the election of officers, the treasurer’s report, and applause for Wendy Markel, who
leaves the Board after three terms as president, we heard a tribule to longtime Board member Patrick Devaney (see
article page ?) and enjoyed a slide presentation of historic downtown buildings by new BAHA Preseident Carrie
Olson (who also arranged that the dessert be a series of four sheet cakes decorated with images of downtown).

The presentation of the 2007 Preservation Awards was made by the Awards Committee (Richard Ehrenberger,
Wendy Markel, Mary Lee Noonan, Sally Sachs, Daniella Thompson, and Jane Edginton, chair). Here are the award-
winning projects, which includes one Commendation. As you travel around town, look for these inspiring preserva-

lion successes, and think of nominations for next year!

— COMMENDATION — .

1. Kate M. Buckley House, 2022 Dwight Way

(architect unknown, 1894)

owners; Ury and Arela Beary
This Berkeley Victarian is situated directly opposite Herrick
Hospital. Tt stands on the south side of Dwight Way, but sadly,
its twin at 2024 Dwight Way, which had been to the west, has
been demolished and there is now a parking lot in its place.
The recent work in the form of complete exterior painting has
greatly enhanced the Buckley House. The subtle beige of the
walls is punctuated with white mim, including a sunburst de-
sign on either side of the window under the peaked roof.
There are five apartments in the main house, with an additional
cottage in the back. Most of the lot is used for parking, but the
lawrn and shrubs at the front soften the appearance of the biock.
BAHA recognizes and commends the preservation and excel-
lent condition that the current owners have bestowed an the
property. The tasteful and suitable ex(erior painting of this

Werrelv Metrke!

charming early Berkeley house offsets greatly the pressure of
the very busy strest, and contributes considerably to the his-
toric efegance of the Dwight Way Station neighborhood.

— AWARDS —

1, Alpha Delta Chi Chapter House, 2401 Ridge Road

{Stafford Lelean Jory, 1924)

myner: Church Divinity School of the Pacific

architect: Turnbull Griffin & Haesloop

contractor: Oliver & Company

structural engineer: Degenkolb Engineers

fandscape architect: Gary Strang, GLS Landscape | Architecture

historical: Naomi Miroglio, Architectural Resources Group
Occupying a prominent point at the top of Holy Hill, the former
Alpha Delta Phi chapter house was designed by Stafford Jory,
a collaborator of John Galen Howard’s on Wheeler Hall, Hilgard
Hall, and Doe Library; the designer of the decorative elements
of Edwards Stadium; and a longtime professor who taught de-
sign and lectured on the Classical Period in the architecture.

The chapter house was  stalety English manor clad in brick
veneer and cast stone caps, with numerous multi-pane windows
and two levels of parapets, Flashing, however, was minimal,
Over the years, rain water seeped in between the wood frame
and the brick cladding, The two layers separated, the casi-stone
trim cracked, and in December 2003, a long section of the sec-
and-floor brick veneer on the west fagade collapsed. (As a seis-
mic precaution, the roof parapets had been removed years ago
along with the upper part of the chimney.)

Repair work entailed removal of the unsafe brick cladding; seis-
mic strengthening of the wood framing; modernizing all sys-
tems while preserving historic appearance; and providing ac-
cessible entry. When it was discovered that the original bricks
could not be reused, a matching brick was found. Custom

Duﬂﬂ Thenipsan, 2007
double-glazed wood windows were locally built to replicate
the originals. The long-missing stone caps and parapets were
rebuilt, albeit with a somewhat different ornamental element,
The Great Hall was restored to its original, three-bay layout.
The library gained modern electronic systems and cabinetry
that blends seamlessly with the historic space, The Church Di-
vinity School of the Pacific community held a brick-cleaning
party and was able to salvage some of the original bricks, which
were used to pave the rear patio.

Christened Easton Hall, the building once again takes its place
as an important Northside marker,

iR T i
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2. King Building, 2501 Telegraph Avenue

(A. Dodge Coplin, 190])

City of Berkeley Landmark No. 267 {designated in 2004)
- owners: John Gurdon and Janis Miichel] .

architect: Iim Novosel, The Bay Architects

structitral engineer: Peler Van Maren, Van Maren Associates

designer: Jane A. Wise, Wise Design

contractors:Mike and Mark Butler, Berkeley Craftsmen Builders

nominated by: Burl Willes
No historic building seems to be too old, tired, or even too di-
lapidated for this preservationist couple to invest in and elevate

= =

to full award-winning potential, and this is no ex-
ception. This corner-store building is one of only
a handful of commercial buildings by turn-of-the-
century architect A, Dodge Coplin, and is an ex-
cellent example of the Colonial Revival style.

A Berkeley Landmark, this building had been an
the market for some time before it was purchased
by the current owners, very likely because of the
disclosure of $600,000 worth of termite damage.
It also had water running through it in winter, so
extensive renovation followed: adding structural
steel, as nothing was holding it up; new slab floors;
new electrical wiring; repair to interior water dam-
. age; and even some pigeon removal was neces-
sary. With characteristic care and attention to detail, the four
upstairs apartments were fully restored ulilizingall of the origi-
nal details and fixtures that remained. At the same fime the
owners restored the landmarked Soda Works Building next door
(not included in this nomination),

BAHA commends the owners along with their architect, build-
ers, engineer, and designer. Dedication and perseverance has
preserved an historic building and has brought vibrant new life
to this busy Berkeley corner and neighbarhood.

Danlelin Thempsin

3. Fred Koerber Building, 2659 College Avenue
farchitect unknown, 1907)
owners: Janis Mitchell and John Gordon, Owners
architects: Iim Novosell / Bay Architects
contractors: Holland and Harley
color consultant; Bob Buckter
nominated by Burl Willes

Purportedly the first commercial building in the Elmwaoad, open-
ing for business in 1907 at the junction of the newly-completed
Ashby and College Key Route streetcar lines, the Koerber
Bulding was listed in the 1909 Cily Directory as contdining a
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general store, a Post Office, and its owner’s residence upstairs.
By century’s end, having remained in the Koerber family, it
was quite in need of major repair and was lacking in seismic
stability. The current owners immediately took on the strue-
tural challenge and carefully, thoroughly, and faithfully re-
stored this most dominant Elmwood landmarl, for its 100th
anmiversary. As you pass by to admire, do not fail to note the
gleaming restored 1950s roofiop air raid Siren.

Diwitiella Thewpson

4, Kueffer House, 2430 Fulton Street

{architect unknown, 1891)

City of Berkeley Landmark No. 256 (designated in 2003)

ewvner: Nathan George ‘
Framed by miscellaneous apartment buildings, across the street
from a parking lot, a colorful Queen Anne cottage joins four
other homes at the interseciion of Fulton and Haste strees to
transport us momentarily back to the turn of the the last cen-
wry and the development of the College Homestead Tract,
BAHA hanors the Kueffer House for the respectful, thorough
restoration that adds so much to this streetscape.
The house was built for John L. Kueffer, a Swiss cabinet maker,
his wile Emily, and their three sons. Later divided into apart-
ments, the house has retirned to a single-family home, while
the raised basement contains a separate apartment. As a crafts-
man, Mr. Kuefter would appreciate the fine condition of the
carefully turned spindles framing the staircase and porch, as
well as other architectural fancies such as fans, pediments,
brackets, and dentils that are once again at their Victorian best,
The old roses blooming behind the wrought iron fence would
also make the Kueffers smile.

5. Rankin House, 2909-11 Wheeler Street
{architect unknown, 1906)
owners: Romney and Daniel O’Connell
architect: Anne-Catrin Schuliz
cantractor: Marls & Mike Butler, Berkeley Craftsmen Builders

Rewney O Cannedl

Restoration of the Rankin House, a 1906 South Berkeley
brown-shingle, was a heroic rescue effort, and no one can de-
scribe it better than the owner, Romney O Connell, who wrote:
“My husband and I bought the house in 2002, Frankly, a fixer
was all we could afford. We lived with our three small chil-
dren in our one-bedroom apartment while working on the
house. The foundation needed replacing, the shingles were
shot, there was ivy growing an the inside of the house, The
kitchen and bath had been very badly and cheaply remodeled,
The dining room board-and-batten had been covered in pan-
eling, and the wall above the plate rail was stymfoam aver
lathe. Both sets of exterior stairs were dangerously rolten, The
built-ins were more or less destroved. The yard was wild and
flooded badly, inpndating the basement.

“We lifted the house to replace the foundation and were granted
a permit o feave it raised three feet. We then took the interior
down to the studs, preserving built-in amenities like window
seats, closets, and dressers. We replaced all plumbing, heat-
ing and electrical systems, and repaired all moldings,

“T spent many hours researching solutions for the staircases,
which were now hanging three feer off the ground. I was
loathe to rebuild them as an awkwardly long run of stairs. [
settled on replacing the original run, adding a large graceful
landing and turning the path ninety degrees for the final three
stairs to the ground, T then set about designing a railing that
would comply with building codes while retaining and en-
hancing the solid beauty of the rest of the house.

“Since there was no access to the large back yard, I designed
a 12 x 35 foot redwood deck for the back of the house, con-
tinuing the same balustrade around it. I replaced a bedroom
window with French doors for access. We then designed a
separate three-bedroom, two-bath home for the ground level

PAGE 10

in order (o, some day, pay for all this! From the outside, most
people can't tell there was an addition at all.”

BAHA applauds the O’Connells for their creative solutions,
zood taste, and thoughtful restoration on a limited budget,

= ey oo er acgr

6. 1720 Delaware Street

{architect unknown, 1890s)

owners: John C. Link and Phyliis Goldsmith

restorers: John Link and Phyllis Goldsmith

architect: John C. Link
For more than a eentury, this tall Queen Anne house has graced
the streets of Berkeley. It is thought to have heen built on
Shattuck Avenue about [890. Sometime between 1911 and
1929, according to Sanborn maps, it was moved to this site.
The present owners bought this the house in 1980 in a poor
and neglected state, moved in, and began a lengthy restora-
tion project. Previous owners had painted it an unfortunate
shade of military green and tacked on it an inappropriate, non-
Victorian front porch.
The exterior painting turned into a multi-year job when they
found layer afier layer of old, bad paint, applied with no prepa-
ration work. The paint had to be stripped down nearly to the
bare wood. The porch was rebuilt afier a preat deal of research
for just the right design and involved considerable effort and
special milling of the elegant newel posts. Over the years, the

owners worked on the interior as well, removing “strange small.

walls and rooms” and adding dry wall, doors, and more.
The architect owner and wife were up to the challenge, They
did the work themselves, most recently replacing the old gal-
vanized guiters with copper. Good taste and dedicated effort
have urned this Victorian into a gift (o its neighborhood.

Muffv Kibhey
7. 1185 Keith Avenue (John Hudson Thomas, c. 1913)

owiers: Laurie Case and Andrew Baker

architect: Gary Earl Parsons

contractor: Jamie Carlen

engineer: Juri Komendant

design consuftant: Michelle Nelson, The Craltsman Home
In today’s world, a remodeled kitchen is ofien a trophy, ap-
preciated as a conspicuous outpouring of resources rather than
as an integral part of a house. The new kitchen and adjoining
spaces here are a happy exception to this trend. Dare we say
that, if John Hudson Thomas were designing this house in
2007, this is the kitchen he would have built?
Thomas found fresh inspiration from several sources: the jo-
cal Crafisman vocabulary, Vienna's Secession Movement, and
the midwestern Prairie Style. But, as typical of the period, his

‘kitchens were spare. His sensitive choice of materials, the lin-

ear leitmotivs in his woodwork and windows, the light-filled,
open spaces that welcome the garden and the bay: these
stopped at the kitchen door of 11835 Keith. Now they are part
of the kitchen’s design.

It is difficult to imagine that, until as recently as a decade ago,
this sylvan, hillside home was broken up into three apartments.
We are delighted that il has been restored as a single-family
home and salute the kilchen that quietly exemplifies the best
of John Hudson Thomas.

8. Mark Daniels House, 1864 Yosemite Road
(AW, Smith, 1910)
owner: L. John Harris
architect; Rachel Hamilton
consulting architecr: Bennett Christopherson
contractor; McCutcheon Construction
profect craftsmen: Alex Hodgkinson/Steve Gibibs
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landscape consultants: Barbra Blake/Bernard
Hiclkie

pardeners: Maudad Safadirazieli/Linda Sobolewski

stonemasons: Leonardo Medina/David Liu

iropsmith: Gary Salzman
One of the earliest homes in Thousand Oaks, the Mark
Daniels House was built for the landscape engineer who
laid out the tract. A shingled structure with wide roof over
hangs, the house is sited midway down a rock-strewn,
sloping lot. Gigantic boulders hem it in on three sides,
creating a unigue setting but 4 challenge for renovation.
Over the past seven years, the current owner has sensi-
tively preserved and expanded the house while also im-
proving the front and rear gardens to reflect the character
of the building.
A recent two-story addition replacing a previously altered
kitchen is al the center of the award-winning project. Siied
one story below the rest of the house and hidden behind a
large bouider, the new addition preserves the building's his-
toric fagade. In materials and proportions, the addition beausi-
fully schoes the historic fabric of the original building,

Careful attention was paid to the minutest detail. Rooflines,
windows, matched shingles, and countiess features not obvi-
ous to the casual observer converge into & harmonious whole,
In the rear, the addition presents a facade with varying set-
backs, whose appearance suggests a rustic village built over
time. The rear garden was transformed into & magical place
where ancient oaks and crags overlook dry-stone walls, ter-
races, and winding paths, all utilizing local stone. A grand “Arts
& Crafis” sione staircase leads from the new addition to the
lower level of the garden, and new trees and shrubs comple-
ment the native hillside,

BAHA congratulates all involved in this stellar project for an
exceptional level of design and craftsmanship.

9. Henry and Ruth Colby House, 210 Stonewall Road
{William Wilson Wurster, 1931, 1941; Thomas Church,
Landscape Archirect, 1934)
owners: Jessica Seaton & Keith Wilson
architects: Seaion/Wilson Architects, Inc,
contractor: Artistry Construction
garden restoration design: Jessica Sealon
painting contractor (exterior); Mark Westhurg Painting
elevator restorer: Metropolitan Elevator Co.
cabiner contracior: Wood Connection, Inc.
_granite countertop supplier: Pietra Fina
Jlaor refinisher: Metroplitan Floors

Dunivllu Tinmgyon
Henry Colby, the son of Slerra Club pioneer William Colby,

grew up in a shingled Julia Morgan house at 2901 Channing
Way. According to legend, he hired Wurster to design his resi-
dence since he had lived long enough in a “dark”™ house.
Waurster pave the Colbys a spacious, light-filled home arranged
on a gentle canyon slope, with the tower of the Claremont
Hotel in its mid-view and the grand Bay Area beyond. The
house was purchased from the Colby family in 2002 by long-
time admirers of Wurster, both of whom are architects trained
at the University. Over the next four years, they focused their
talents and efforts on extensive interior and exterior restora-
tion, with constant reference 1o the resousces of the Wurster
Daocument Collection at the University. They were able to cre-
ate a contemporary kitchen completely within the original
spirit (and envelope) of the house. A family room, hinted at in
the original plans, was developed in open space on the upper
level and is totally concomitant with the Wurster work.

With the same attention and devotion to the original, Jessica
Seaton has rescued the inherited Thomas Church garden, The
original woed walls and steps have been rebuilt, and substan-
tial new plantings arranged
with utmost respect (o the
Church geometry. The
house was included in the
1945 exhibit “Modern
Houses™ at the Museum of
Modemn Art in New York.

Dol Thompsan
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IBAHA is Built upon the Generosity of Its Members and Friends

INCE the last Newsletter, BAHA is delighted to re-
port that members and friends have continued to
contribuite material for the BAHA Archives:

John and Barbara Taylor: Milton T. Pflueger, Time
and Tinm Remembered; A Tradition of Bay Area Archi-
tecture, Pflueger Architects Timothy, Milron and John,
The First Sevenry-Five Years 1908 to 1983, inscribed
by the author to John Taylor (served as Berkeley City
Manager 1973-76); Paul Templeton: photographs of
Temple of the Wings, framed; Dan and Shirley Dean:
unsigned ink drawings of Rose Walk (designed by Ber-
nard Maybeck, 1913); Rita Strom: Rita Frances Strom,
A House Remembered, an album of photos and family
history pertaining to the (Phoebe Apperson) Hearst-Reed
House, 2368 Le Conte Avenue (Ernest Coxhead, 1902);
Trish Hawthorne: an Ofla Podrida (Berkeley High
School yearbook) and Oakland Landmarks; Berkeley
Historical Society: North Congregational Church pam-
phlets and histories of it; Jerry Sulliger: photos of the

newly-completed Berkeley Post Office and of the cor-
nerstone laying, and an album of photos, including many
of the Panoramic Hill neighborhood; Doris Nassiry: a
maonetary contributjon,

BAHA has recently set a new policy for Research
Days, Thursday afternoons 2-6 p.m., when the Archives
are open to the “public” for research. In addition to a
fee charged to professional consultants of $75 per hour,
a $35 per visit fee is charged for research by non-mem-
bers. Of course, the privilege of using the Archives will
continue for those who are BAHA members. BAHA
does reserve the right to turn away those who might use
the Archives for purposes in conflict with our mission,
which remains:

1o educate the community 1o encourage and secure the
preservation of those structures, sites, and areas which
have special architectural, historic, or aesthetic value

contributing to the enrichment of the Berkeley environ-
ment and to the understanding of its heritage,

PAT DPEVANEY (1918- 2007)—A TRIBUTE

PATRICK DEVANEY was born in Minneapolis in
1919. He was the son of John P, Devaney, Chief
Justice of the Minnesota Supreme Court. Pat attended
Blake School in Minneapolis, Phillips Exeler Academy,
Stanford Universily, University of Minnesota, and
Hastings Law Schoal.

In 1965 Pat moved with his wife, Xathleen, and
sans, Jack and Tim, to Berkeley and Panoramic Hill,
and gravitated naturally to city planning jssues. He was
involved with the passage of the Neighborhood Preser-
vation Ordinance (NPO) in the early 1970s, and, by the
earty 1980s, had been appointed to the Planning Com-
mission. From 1989 to 2007, Pat was editor of the Coun-
cil of Neighborhoods Association Newsletter,

Pat became an active board member of BAHA in
1976, and that year, he, along with other BAHA mem-
bers, played a key role in saving the Naval Architecture
Building (John Galen Howard, 1914} on campus. He
also played a key role in defeating the Berkeley Rede-
velopment Agency plan for a West Berkeley Industrial
Park and establishing the Delaware Historic Districl.

When the Downtown Plan was crafted in the 1980s,

Pzrrruk Devaney (wnrer) with nrher EAHA menibers, mc!udmg
Howard Bloch, Carroll Brentano, Lynne Crocker, and Lesley
Enntington, at g ralfy to save the Naval Architecture Building in 1976.
Ken Green plrmr). Qukiand Tribune.

Pat knew Berkeley's political dynamics and he inspired
residents, planning stafl, and neighborhood associations
to appreciate and preserve Berkeley’s historic downtown
buildings. He had a key role in selting a 5-story height
limit for the Downtown.

Pat fought for Berkeley and for all of us, and he is
sorely missed,
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FYOU MISSED the August Straw-
berry Canyon visit of Charles

Landscape Foundation, sponsored by
BAHA and the American Society of
Landscape Architects, Northern Cali-
fornia Chapter, then you missed a de-
lightful opportunity to learn of the
Historic Landscape Initiative. You also missed the en-
joyable rambles in the Canyon, led by Michael Kelly
{Monument Hill Vista), Linda Govan (Universiry Bo-
tanical Garden), Robin Freeman (Strawberry Cregh—
Its Sowrces), and Gray Brechin (Panoramic Hill), as well
as a delicious barbecue at Haas Club House (Wursler,
Bernardi & Emmons, 1959). These events, together with
the ramble last summer starting from the Memorial Qalz
Grove, co-sponsored by the California Native Plant
Society, East Bay Chapler, are BAHA endeavars to con-
tribute to an understanding of Strawberry Canyon as a
significant landscape that not only defines Berkeley’s
sense of place, but also that of the greater Bay Area,

Charles Birnbuum

The stark reality that Lawrence Berkeley National
Laboratory (LBNL), in association with a British Pe-
troleum (BP) contract, is planning to construct a new
building, the Helios Building (in excess of 160,000 gross
sq. ft.), on undeveloped land in the lower reaches of the
interior of the Canyon, with an additional new road and
parking lots, is cause for alarm. According to the LBNL
Long Range Development Plan this is only the begin-
ning. We know from such visionaries as Frederick Law
Olmsted, John Muir, Presidents Theodore Roosevelt and
Franklin Delano Roosevelt, Stephen Mather, Duncan
MecDuffie, Robert Sibley, and Sylvia McLaughlin, that
conservation of the natural world provides all commu-
nities with vital links to social and environmental health.
Certainly, the task of persuading LBNL and BP (i.e. the
University Regents) to respect Strawberry Canyon’s his-
toric relationship to our community, and the Canyon’s
fragile ecological limits and its many cultural amenities
(so that they might seek an alternative site for research
and development ventures) is a daunting challenge for
our local preservation community. A first step is to ap-
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preciate the Canyon's history.

The Canyon—directly opposite the
Golden Gate—has been a distinctive feature of
the Coast Range since before those historic days
in the 1850s when the University took owner-
ship of its valley and the grassy plain below,
Streamlets flowing down from its high ridges,
throngh a multitude of hillside outlets, all cre-
ate the Strawberry Creek headwalers, releas-
ing over 100,000 gallons of water a day. The
discovery of this water source led the nascent
College of California, then in Oalland, to se-
lect the site For what was to become the Uni-
versity and city of Berkeley.

In 1863, when Frederick Law Olmsted
conceived the University’s first campus plan and
laid out Piedmont Way as a gracious centerpiece
for his first American residential neighborhood,
the Berkeley Property, he aligned Piedmont
Way to intersect at the highesi northern point
with the mouth of Strawberry Creek, or the "ra-

at the end of Piedmont Way and Prospect Sireet,
it replaced the “gorge,” where the water once
pooled, and where the Hayward Fault runs
north-south along the Coast Range. The Sta-
dium (listed on the National Register) was, and
is, a Beaux Arts masterpiece and an amazing
| engineering feat, Yet, at that time, its placement
in the path of Strawberry Creek and in the midst
of an established area of distinguished homes
and gardens stirred many to protest bitterly.
(Today, Berkeley awaits the fatefu] decision of
Alameda County Superior Court Judge Miller
re: proposed Stadium expansion.)

The highlands of the Canyon, where the
dairy ranch was located, also evolved with time,
Early, conifers and eucalyptus irees were
planted along the top of the ridges. Most im-
portantly, in 1928, the University Botanical
Garden, which had been established on the main
campus in 1890, moved into the Canyon where

=~ it now occupies a fenced area of 25 acres, ex-

vine.” In his words, this was where the water SehenIMather name- hiniting over 12,000 different kinds of plants

" . sake of Mother Grve in
stands near the surface of the ground during E?;}.’L,A Comony

the entire summer” and where the ground “is
abundantly covered with native foliage of a very beau-
tiful character.” Olmsted applauded the view up “through
the goree and out upon the bay” and described a road
within the gorge that “fellows a stream of water from
the open landscape of the bay region into the midst of
the mountains it [the road] offers a greal change of scen-
ery within a short distance, and will constitute a unique
and most valuable appendage o the general local at-
tractions of the neighborhood.”

Until the 1920s, the Canyon remained largely a
natural resource, its highest grassy areas grazed by the
milk cows of the Such Family, and its oak and bay lau-
rel woodlands inspiring such California painters as Wil-
liam Keith, Edwin Deakin, and A. H. Broad. Early mem-
bers of the Sierra Club, many of whom lived either on
the Canyon’s south side on Panoramic Hill (listed on
the National Register), or nearby in the Berkeley Prop-
erty tract, often hiked up the old Canyon Road and ex-

" tolled the surrounding scenic beauty.

The first and most significant alteration to the Can-
yon occurred when the California Memorial Stadium
(Tohn Galen Howard, 1923) was built. Set upon landfill

representative the world's major floristic zones.
The largest area of the Garden is devoled to the
native plants of California. In 1930, the Mather Red-
wood Grove was planted with approximately 150 red-
woods in tribute to Stephen Mather’s work as founding
Director of the National Park Service, his early asso-
ciations with the Sierra Club, and to honor him as a Cal

‘graduate of the class of 1887. Then, in 1933, the Cali-

fornia Conservation Corps created the Redwood Grave
Amphitheater, as well as several bridges in the Canyon.

Of course, Ernest Orfando Lawrence's discovery
in 1931 of the ability to split an atom was the catalyst
for the initial wave of research and development facili-
ties on Berkeley’s hillsides. The first generation of build-
ings was known as the Radiation Laboratory, or the “Rad
Lab,” and were mainly out-of-sight. In the beginning,
the Canyon, itself, was sparsely sprinkled with a com-
plex of research buildings located on its north slope.
More recenily, with the ownership of the facilities turned
over ta the U.S. Department of Energy and renamed
LBNL, but still under the operation of the University
Regents, the land has been considered an industrial de-
velopment opportunity site.

{continued on poge 7)
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Out-Going President’s Message

T HAS BEEN both hard work and the greatest of pleasure being

BAHA’s President these past three years. I remember vividly accept-
ing the position in 2004 at Westminster House, just after the dorms opened
and before the now well-known restaurant Adagio opened. In the last
three years, BAHA has hosted many events, beginning with the recep-
tion at the Harris House, The following year saw the lecture series, cap-
tioned Hidden Lodges of Berkeley and Beyond, and tours given for
Stanford’s Cantor Museum members. Hillside School saw it’s first class

reunion with a tour of the neighborhood, BAHA organized an event at the South Berkeley Community Church,

k|

and the community was invited to the First Church of Christ, Scientist to hear Leslie Freudenheim speak on her
book Building with Nature. There was an illustrated talk, Exploring the Adirondacks, at the Hillside Club with a
subsequent visit to the Adirondacks, there was a ramble and picnic in Strawberry Canyon, a 100th birthday party
was held for a north Berkeley treasure, and the 1ist would not be complete without mention of the Evening on tire
Edge of the Western World, which brought preservationists from far and near under one magnificent roof.

Those are the evenls BAHA has hosted, but at the same time BAHA has offered, without interruption, the
series of First Friday tours; quarterly newsletters; house tours of the Panoramic Hill historic district, of Walier
Ratclifi’s work, and of the homes and gardens in Thousand Oaks; support to those writing landmark nominations;
and research assistance to the public, to the city, to contractors, to real estate agents, and to historic consultants;
and has participated in the Solano Stroll and the Spice of Life. BAHA has awarded preservation work, worked
with the neighboring Berkeley City Club, has questioned University development, and has given uncounted hours
of service to members and the general public who seek architeciural heritage information through the office. And,

that is not all! Board members have atiended symposiums, planning
meetings, City Council meetings, and California Preservation Foun-
dation lectures. They have written books, written articles which ap-
peared in the press, worked with the DAPAC, aflended landscape
heritage lectures, worked with architects, and served on city com-
missions and on neighborhood association boards.

And, why? For the love of it. For no money. For you. For the
apprecialion, preservation, and perpetuation of the history and archi-
1 tectural heritage of Berkeley. And, now what? Now it is your turn.
BAHA cannot do it all on its own. Consider this, “Now we must take
the next step. At a time of increasing concern about such issues as

climate change and the depletion of natural resources, we must work hard o strengthen and publicize the connec-

ke

tions between preservation and sustainable development.” Who said thal? Mr. Richard Moe, President of the
National Trust for Historic Preservation. He could have been talking to the residents of Berkeley who are currently
facing the threat of several 19-story buildings downtown. (If you have heard of only one 19-story building, that is
because the others are under wraps.) If you remember nothing else about what T have just said, remember “pres-
ervation is the ultimate recycling. Reusing an existing building, instead of demolishing it is one good way to
congerve energy.” Consider the concept of “embodied energy™ in existing structures, and the environmental im-

pact of adding more demolition and construction debris to already crowded landfifis.

My time is up, my presidency of BAHA over; but the work goes on, and [
would Tike to welcome and introduce Carrie Olson who is known to many of
you, who has been a BAFHA board member for many years and to whom I hand
the keys of the office and the symbaolic paddle of Presidential power.

NEIRY
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WELCOME NEVW MEMBERS ...

BAHA welcoes the follmving people who huve joined

BAHA since the lust Ne

Jriends abour BAHA und encourage them to join, 100!

Laura Allen
Becky Bari &
Kater Murch
Candice Basham
Alan Bern
Gerhard Blendstrup
Terry Blount
Vivian Bobha
Carol Anne & The Very

Patricia St. John

welerter went on, Tell yonr  Richard Silberman

Louise A. Sampson

Judith M. Jacobsen

Roy Jarl

Carol & Bab
Kelly-Thamas

Faye Keogh

Robin Kibby

Sandi Hobbs Konrath

Kate Krezmer

L.Z. Lerman

Rev. Donald G. Brown Lyle Lopus

Steven Carr

Carlene Chang

Paul V. Curtis

Colin Dadsworth

1. & P. Dolhinow

Tim Ernst

Carolyn L. Erskine

Saroko Garcia

Sandra Gaunt

Nancy Genn

David Greenbaum &
Heidi Rosenfelder

Jane W. Headley

Gail W. Lowry
Josephine MacMillan
Pamela Marostica
Donna McCracken
Ellen McKaskle

Jane McKinne-Mayer
Ann & Dean Metzger
Tod Morton

Bart O’'Brien

David Osborn
Thomas Pedemonte
Ruth & Barry Phillips

Dr. Ellen Fizsimmons

Gordon Silvera
Susan Stein
Romer Stevenson
Anthony Thompson
Sara B, Van Orsdel
Bob Viener
Marilyn Willats
Sherry Zalabal
CONTRIBUTING
Cris Cohn
Ellen L. Hahn
Mark Headley &
Christina Pehl
Justine Hume
Ronna Kabatznick
& Peter Dale Scort
Catherine & Hayne
Letand
Kitty & John Lindow
John N, Roberis

PATRON

Bruce Aidells

+ .+ AND MEMBERS RENEVWED!

Jume Allen & Mare Gront, Rbals Alvanez. Fan & lim Afbriston, Dueuy
Ames, Sheiln Andses, Put & Gune Angell, John G. Aminevied;

L:Hy Buede, J.K. Ballonline, Helen Barber, Jnan V, Barnei, Cris Barens,
Juste Bl Arlene Buxter & Duvid Moslanb, Mary Buxter. Susan
& Rohen Becker, Joed ben lzzy, Bestion Benedicl, Emily Benner,
Durotliea Benney, Corvline & Michoe] Betendord, Beverly Dense,
Telph Bensan, Roben Watlace Blake, Biles Bloel, Munigue Bosjour,
Linds Carmsth Brigdlurd, Mury Dreunig, Sieptiied 15 Orockmann,
StaiTond Bucklzy, Cagl Bunch, Frances Burmeite, Grove Buzaljko;
Barbura H. Catdwalader, Shirley £ Dennis Cupute, Daneter CasteHo,
Sents FPugh Chumberiuin, Carnlys Chupin, Hiideh Chew, Linnes &
Richurd Christival, Kanin Cilmim, Gearge Clark, Counney Chirksin.
Murilyn & Juck Chbwn, Thomus Cline & Barhara Meyes, Sydney
Clemens, funel & Juseph Clyne. Tesei Compost. Marguerite Congad,
Eatherine Cooley, Rosemary M. Cosbin, Patriciu Cross, Mary Cormn;
Anpie-May the Bresson. Mary Hope Duan, Bisnn Demeter. Peier Di
Murin, Fruseine D% Paima, Helen Gross Disrkes., Deverly Doane,
Burhuru & Dovid Dosefeld, Riley Doy, Wendy Drapes
CONTRIBUTING

Dushura Addic & Jenemy Knight, Fam & Gil Atidnsen, Jacgueline
Buth & Keith Miller, Alies Londen Bishop, Kevin Hroge, Builders
Bnnksource, Predricu Dasos, Burtan Peek Edwards, Mary Fishman,
Burbara Fluyd, Sably Frecdmu, Glake Gilmone, Marilyn Goldhnber
& Amus Guldhaber, Hilary & Danict Golilstine, Bill Grove. Manin
Guemens & Rabeet Wanl, B. Guy, Jill Korie & Peter Burgess. Joan
& Ponuld Mostronarde, Michael MeCuseheon, Mara Melundsy,
Annette Min, Madulie £ Joe Miser, Jean & Roger Moss, Carrie
Olson. Juek: Phillips, Jnhn M. Pand, Waller Reselill, Elsie Revenuugh.
Sally & Bemunt Sking, Comlyn & Marvin Swalker, Jerry Sulliger
Tealith & Richurd Wasetl, Steven [ Winke), Cynthia & Jumes Wood.
SUSTAINING

Abrutma/Militkan, [hvid Digham & Howard Arendeson, G, Pew
Encinas, Juka Gondun & Fanis Mitckell, Curol & foe Neil, Boh
Nurtem, Judy & Fred Portn, Seatl Wachenheim,

PATRON
Juliet Lagont & Phil Price, Laurie &
Kens Surschan.

Jonathan Heller Porzig ?ﬁ'i:?\?;ﬁl?i Tt Wup_l-nnun. At &
GAil Hollander Nanc}, Raff & A :1|f-ingr uﬂus. hnrl;l_u:.- Fiyl hmun & .A!L_m
Kurt Housh John Torcassi ) IS{E::;\'r;nr‘:sz.hJ':lu:er o P
7 You can join BAHA
Bend form to P.O. Box 1138%, Berkeley, Gal. 94901
NAME
ADDRESS ZIP
TELEPHONE E-MAIL
T want to be
ACTIVE! [T $25 Individual [J$100 Contributing [ $500 Patron

P e R e e e S ———

Special interesty
or talents:

Right to cast 1 vate per
election.Receipt of guarterly
Newslerter. Mermber discount
on 2 tickets to each House
Tour., Discount on most books
bought through BAHA.

[] $50 Household

Right to cast 2 votes per elec-
tion, Receipt of quarierly
Newslerter. Member discount
an 4 tickets to each House
Tour. Discount on most books
bought thraugh BAHA.

Same benefits as Househeld,
plus 2 half-priced tickeis to the
Annual Spring House Tour,

13250 Sustaining

Same benefits as Household,
plus 4 hatf-priced tickers to the
Annual Spring House Tour,

[1$5 Student/Low-Iscome
Includes same benefits as Ingi-
vidual and Household categories,

Same benefits as Sustaining,
plus six half-priced tickets o
the Annual Spring House Tour.

[]$1000 Benefactor
Same benefits as Patron, plus
ten half-priced tickets to the
Annuval Spring House Tour.



THE BERKELEY
ARCHITECTURAL
HERITAGE
ASSOCIATION
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May 29, 2007

Jeff Philliber '

LBNL Envitonmental Planning Coordinator

Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory

One Cyclotron Road, MS 80.101

Berkeley, CA 94720

Re: Comments on the Notice of Intent to Adopt a Negative Declaration for
Construction and Operations of Proposed Berkeley Lab Guest House

Dear Mr. Philliber:

The Berkeley Aschitectural Heritage Association ( BAHA) is writing in dismay,
having learned that the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory (LBNL) is seeking
adoption at the Regent's July meeting of a Negative Declaration for the construction of
a proposed “Guest House” in Strawberry Canyon. Given the possibility that the Guest
House "MAY" cause detriment to Strawberry Canyon's sensitive environment and
given that Strawberry Canyon has been assessed to be a potential Cultural Landscape,
BAHA questions the adequacy of the published Negative Declaration as being in
compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act, BAHA, in the spirit of its
mission “to encourage and secure the preservation of those structures, sites, and areas
which have value contributing to the enrichment of the Berkeley environment and to the
understanding of its heritage,” urges LBNL and the Regents to take pause,

BAHA has attempted to understand the LBNL rationale for inadequate
environmental review by preparing a Negative Declaration for the proposed Guest
House project, By description, the Guest House is introducing a new residential use, as
well as associated cumulative uses, that have the probability of altering the
environmental integrity of a potential natural resource of national, state, and/or local
standing, No discussion of impacts from the 1987 » 1992, or the 1997 Environmental
Impact Reports evaluates any such residential use in Strawberry Canyon, previously,
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currently, or in the future, Furthermore, relying on anticipated proposed projects,
including 10 listed LBNL “planned, pending, and/or reasonably foreseeable projects in
the area” would appear to be disingenuous as these are projects have not yet been fully
reviewed in compliance with CE QA (e.g. BAHA comment letter, March 23, 2007 \
LBNL 2006 Long Range Development Plan), nor have they been approved and,
therefore, they do not, by association, justify inadequate environmental review of the
Guest House,

Recently the City of Berkeley Landmarks Preservation Commission, Certified by
the California State Office of Historic Preservation, assessed that the Strawberry
Canyon is a potential Cultural Landscape “merit [ing] documentation as such.” BAHA
would expect that no projects would go forward until the obligation of identifying the

significance of Strawberry Canyon goes forward (Please see enclosed Memorandum,
March 7, 2007).

It is BAHA's considered belief, based on a long standing historic perspective of
the significance of Strawberry Canyon's natural features, that a full analysis of the
potential environmental impacts of the Guest House is deserved under CE QA
Guidelines, including a full analysis of alternatives within the city’s urban context.

Thank you for attention given to these concerns.

Sincerely,
W&J& Mok,
Wendy Markel, Presﬁ.ent

Enc: 1) BAHA letter to Jeff Philliber, Environmental Planning, LBNL, March 23,
2007, :
2) City of Berkeley, Landmarks Preservation Commission Memorandum to
Arrietta Chakow, Assistant City Manager, March 7, 2007

cc: Richard Blum, Chairman, Board of Regents
Chancellor Robert Birgeneau
Dan Marks, Director, Planning and Development, City of Berkeley
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DERKELEY, CALIFORNIA 9470

TEL. 510-34]-2242  Fax. . - TY 7]
Jeff Philliber Marcé 213,226{027 Fax. 510- 84l

Environmental Planning Group

Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory

One Cyclotron Road, MS 90J.0120

Berkeley, California 94720 SEND Via FAX 510-486-4101

Re: Comments on the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory 2006 Long Ran‘gc
Development Plan Draft Environmental Impact Report

Dear Jeff Philliber:

The Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association (BAHA) appreciates this opportunity
to comment on the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the Lawrence Berkeley
National Laboratory (LBNL) Long Range Development Plan (LRDP). BAHA, a long standing
membership organization dedicated to the education, encouragement, and protection of
Berkeley's unique historic environment, is commenting in its capacity as a public stake holder
with serious concerns about the profound environmental impacts that these plans would have
upon the irreplaceable assets of Strawberry Canyon as a Cultural Landscape.

The LRDP, a programmatic document only, proposes to utilize the Strawberry Canyon
area for almost a million square feet of new and, as of yet, unconstructed building space and to
create 500 additional parking spaces for 1,000 new employees. Concurrently, the project
objectives are proposed to strengthen, expand, and design for new institutional growth. While
these projected plans and objectives would appear to be rational and in sync with current
institutional research practices or business models, they are, in reality, not logical or socially
responsible at this location. The natural and physical terrain of the hillside area, plus the
University’s plans already proposed in the adjoining Southeast Campus, and the significance of
Strawberry Canyon as a Cultural Landscape make this proposal not only unwelcome, but

.ncredulous.

At this juncture the environmental review in the LRDP is lacking an adequate
understanding of the project scale and building(s) mass that would, in fact, be needed to fulfill
the programmatic plans outlined in the DEIR. The stated intent to expand current facilities
and to rehabilitate current facilities is too vague. The sketchy “illustrative design” concepts
portraying the physical imprint of potential “new scientific facilities” are insufficient. There is a
need to disclose true architectural plans, including magnitude, location, height, design,
materials, mechanical apparatus, and waste systems of such building(s) providing for such
“national” research facilities “programmed to accommodate multiple disciplines in advanced
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infrastructure suitable for future scientific endeavors...[and] to support future research
initiatives and continued growth in existing programs” that might serve the combined uses of
academic research, federal/state interests, and industrial capital/business interests. Lacking
such full disclosure at this juncture, the following questions are posed:

* Which existing LBNL facilities would be expanded?
* Which existing LBINL facilities would be rehabilitated?

* How would existing facilities and rehabilitated facilities connect physically to “new scientific
facilities” in order to “enhance collaboration, productivity, and efficiency?”

* Will the Final EIR disclose full architectural plans for all the buildings needed to fulfill the
programmatic plans and project objectives outlined in the DEIR?

* Will any LBNL contracts with outside state/federal and private industry be available for
public review at the time of the Final EIR?

* Will any LBNL contracts with outside state/federal and private industry be completed at
the time of the Final EIR?

* How will the California Governot’s pledge to secure $40 million, or more, determine the size,
scope, demands of the projected “new scientific facilities?”

In the case of the “illustrative design” building concept(s) in the DEIR, sited across
from the University’s historic Botanical Garden, and next to the Stephen Mather Redwood
Grove, the following questions seem appropriate now to ask:

* Why would “new scientific facilities” of such magnitude be placed across from the University's
Botanical Garden, a cultural resource ranking with other major Botanical Gardens as the
one of the world's leading Gardens in the number of plants it contains?

* Would not the “new scientific facilities” adversely effect the integrity of the adjacent
California Area, the largest area of the Botanical Garden that boasts of having the largest
area devoted to a regional collection of native plants?

What would the effect of an industrial-parklike-development be upon the necessary mild
climate that sustains the Botanical Garden?

* How would the LBNL “new scientific facilities” complex, including parking, effect the
natural flow of water in the Botanical Garden?

Is it not alarming that the LBNL “new scientific facilities” complex, including parking, be
proposed adjacent to the Mather Redwood Grove, thus removing a context area that
defines its integrity?

Is the projected location for “new scientific facilities” the only location in Strawberry
Canyon that could accommodate new building(s) and parking of that magnitude?
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As a public stake holder it is expected that BAHA, would concur with the finding of
the DEIR that the LRDP, as proposed, would cause “significant" environmental impacts.
The public health and safety issues alone — such as water pollution, air pollution, landslides,
earthquakes, acts of terrorism, traffic congestion, and extreme fire hazards — are conspicuous.
Strawberry Canyon is a special place defined by a natural environment that is already under the
stress of over-development. Further alteration of its geologically formed hillsides — formed by the
timeless interaction of earthquakes, water flow, and precipitation off the Pacific Ocean — to
accommodate unlimited “new scientific facilities” is, indeed, an alarming proposal. BAHA joins
the City's Planning Commission and Landmarks Preservation Commission in requesting that
alternatives be sought elsewhere on University owned property. The following questions seem
critical to understand:

* Why would the LBNL LRDP DEIR finding of “significant” environmental impacts be
“unavoidable” (italics ours) when the University owns property elsewhere that is potentially
suitable for scientific research and development?

» What property owned by the University in Richmond has been set aside for potential
University research and development?

e When was University property in Richmond identified as a potential for research and
development?

e Is any of the University property in Richmond contaminated?
¢ Is any of the University's Strawberry Canyon property contaminated?

* Given the current practice of global partnerships and collaborations, technological flexibility,
and shared advanced research locations, why would a LBNL LRDP project objective be
limited to one “main site” within the University, Berkeley, area!

e Would not LBNL elect to give leadership to environmental solutions that will have a

positive local, regional environmental impact as well as to global environmental solutions?

The University, Berkeley, and, indeed, LBNL gained their historical roots because of
Strawberry Canyon. As early as the 1850s the site was recognized to be a provider of constant
water, making possible the location of a future educational institution. The sense of place then
was poetic among those who selected the site:

The line of the horizon sweeps in the distance round almost half a circle, commencing at
the summit near New Almaden and following a mountain line till it passes west of [San
Francisco], where it becomes an ocean horizon for a considerable distance...The extent, the
variety of the life embraced in the scenery presented in this view, including as it does land
and water, bay and ocean, islands, plains and mountains, city and country, are seldom

equaled. Rev. S. H. Willey, 1858
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Later, in 1865, Frederick Law Olmsted, America's father of landscape architecture, was to
describe the dramatic impressions of the “steep declivities of the coast range” and the “native
foliage of a very beautiful character” that defined the effect of Strawberry Canyon as it graced
what would become the urban town. The origins of LBNL in Strawberry Canyon, beginning in
the WWII era, should be remembered as having its origin in such a rustic and unapproachable
area because of the need to have a nearly secret and inaccessible location.

Again, BAHA takes the lead from the City's Landmarks Preservation Commission which
responded to the' DEIR with the comment “the Strawberry Canyon Area is a potential
Cultural Landscape...[that] the DEIR does not acknowledge the adverse impacts.. .therefore,
alternatives, including alternative sites for the proposed development(s), need to be identified

and analyzed in the FEIR.”

Thank you for your attention to BAHA's comments and for your consideration of

BAHA's concerns.

S incerely,

ﬁ/]wv

Wendy arkel, Presxdent
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THE DERKELEY
ARCHITECTURAL
HERITAGE
A%OCIATION

PO.BOX 1137 MAIN POST OFFICE

DERKELEY, CALIFORNIA 9470l
TEL. 5/0- 8412043  FAX. 510-841-742I

Jeff Philliber anuary 4
Environmental Planning Group
Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory

One Cyclotron Road, MS 90J.0120
Berkeley, California 94720

Re: Comments on the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory (LBINL) Computational
Research and Theory Facility (CRT) Draft Enviromental Impact Report (DEIR)

Dear Jeff Philliber:

... Some, doubtless, would talk of the beautiful flowers which mantle the hills like an
exquisitely varied carpet; some of the birds, their habits, their color, their song; some

would talk of the early history of Berkeley and would give reminiscences of the Golden Age

of youthful Berkeley. But underlying all these, and forming the condition of their

existence — without which there never would have been any Berkeley — are the Hills with

their rounded and infinitely varied forms, their noble outdook over fertile plain and
glistening Bay shut in beyond by glorious mountain ranges through which the Golden

Gate opens out on the boundless Pacific. It was this that decided the choice of the site

of the University, and determined the existence of Berkeley.

... These Hills, therefore, Itke all mountains, were formed by upheaval, or by igneous forces
at the time mentioned; but all the details of their scenery — every peak or rounded
knob, every deep cafion or gentle swale, is the result of subsequent sculpturing by water.

If the greater masses were determined by interior forces, all the lesser outlines — all that

constitutes scenery — were due to exterior forces. If the one kind of force rough-hewed,
the other shaped into forms of beauty.

Joseph Le Conte "The Making of the Berkeley Hills" from A Berkeley Year,

Published by Women’s Auxiliary of the First Unitarian Church of Berkeley, 1898

The Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association (BAHA), dedicated "to educate the

community to encourage and secure the preservation of those structures, sites, and areas which

have special architectural, historic, or aesthetic value contributing to the enrichment of the

Berkeley environment and to the understanding of its heritage” and representing over 1200

members, wishes to register concern regarding the potential environmental impacts of the

proposed CRT project. BAHA was overlooked in the formal noticing and distribution of the

CRT project DEIR, in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).
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This oversight is curious as BAHA did comment (sce attached) regarding the 2006 Lawrence
Berkeley National Laboratory (LBNL) Long Range Development Plan (LRDP). While the
Christmas/Holiday is a difficult time to study and digest the profound implications of the
proposed CRT project, BAHA understands that this is a critical opportunity for any concerns
and questions to be expressed toward an effort to encourage the Regents of the University of
California, LBNL, and the United States Department of Energy (DOE), to give adequate
consideration of alternative location(s) other than that of the Berkeley-Oakland East Bay
Hills, a significant geographic feature of the Coast Range.

Intrinsic to Berkeley’s own sense of place and physical beauty are the East Bay Hills.
Their steep rise behind the city and the University of California (University) Campus afford
unforgettable views and vistas expanding out and beyond, "On the Edge of the World."1
Looking inward from the sea they, in turn, shape the San Francisco Bay Area. Since the
beginnings of Berkeley, University ownership of this vast hillside backdrop has been appreciated by
all, town and gown alike, as a traditional cultural property, associated with a deeply shared
community history and a love for the natural environment.

That the ridges today suffer from many intrusive developments is due cause to be
diligent in analysis of the potential impacts of the proposed CRT project. The introduction of
the Molecular Foundry building (approved without an EIR) upon the Hills already stands as a
stark warning. Its utilitarian hard-edged style of architecture, exhibiting industrial-park
proportions with reflecting glass facades, not only changes the natural ambiance of the hillside
itself, but also dramatically and substantially changes views and vistas of Berkeley
(overshadowing the Campanile and Claremont Hotel, both listed on the National Register of
Historic Places). The proposed CRT project, notably as sizable as any building within the city’s
urban context below, also promises to become visually intrusive from above upon the landscape
and to destroy yet another natural site of the unsspoilt hillside (the simulated photographic
depictions in the DEIR are not adequate). By the definition of its research and development
functions, whether for "educational” or commercial uses, placing the CRT project on the LBNL
hillside property begs reconsideration. Why would LBNL sacrifice unnecessarily, again and again,
Berkeley’s stretch of the celebrated East Bay Hills for the purpose of amassing high-tech
facilities when there are other land use options?

An initiative to undertake a cultural landscape survey of the East Bay Hills, directly
opposite the Golden Gate on University lands (including LBNL hillside property), would seem
to be a mandatory and necessary action at this time, in compliance with the CRT project
CEQA review. Defined most clearly as Strawberry Canyon and its watershed, the hillside
landscape deserves public recognition as an invaluable asset meriting protection from further
degradation. In-depth rescarch and scholarship documenting the shared community history and
the irreplaceable natural resources are long overdue. Below is a limited narrative to reflect only a
broad sweep of the community’s historic setting, linked initially to the watershed found in the
Strawberry Creek and then permanently connected to a sense of place.
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It was in 1846 when Colonel John Charles Frémont and his troops first rode over the
East Bay Hills to discover an enclosed harbor and out stretching sea before them. Standing on
the ridge Frémont then wrote across his map the words "Golden Gate" and thus crystallized
an image of stunning grandeur for the world to see. When Henry Durant selected the site for
the University along the hillsides of the East Bay, in the spring of [1856], accounts, again,
tell of an awe inspiring panorama of beauty: "He had set out to seek a place where learning
might find a peaceful home on our Pacific shore. And he had come to the spot, where rising
calmly from the sunlit bay, the soft green slope ascended, gently at first and then more
abruptly, till it became a rugged storm-worn mountain and then disappeared in the sky. As he

gazed upon the glowing landscape he knew he had found it." Durant is said to have exclaimed,
"Eureka, I have found it!"

In 1865 when Frederick Law Olmsted, the patron saint of American landscape
architecture, was briefly in California and commissioned by the University to prepare a plan for
the property, he envisioned a campus aligned with views of the Golden Gate, placing the
buildings on a lower terrain of the open landscape where it might be "less commanding and
dignified, but more secluded and protected and in this respect more consistent with the idea of
Scholarship.” The campus, then, would be alongside a thriving commercial town enhanced by
gracious "civilized" neighborhoods of homes and parks — all to be shaped by the "steep declivities
of the coast range." Olmsted recognized the contrasting beauty of the wild areas up Strawberry
Canyon "following a stream of water from the open landscape of the bay region into the midst
of the mountains it [the road] offers a great change of scenery within a short distance, and will
constitute a unique and most valuable appendage to the general local attractions of the

neighborhood."

By the 1890s efforts to develop Berkeley with a respect for the Hills became a self-
conscious passion. Images of William Keith painting live oaks along Strawberry Canyon'’s creek
banks or, perhaps, Professor Andrew Lawson leading his students to explore geological tracings in
Wildcat Canyon, are only two of the many deep-rooted associations in the community for a love
of the landscape. Out of such appreciation a group of spirited ladies formed the Hillside Club.
The Hillside Club was transforming, creating a civic pride to influence the building of roads,
homes and gardens to reflect the contours of the hillside. The Club founder, Madge Robinson,
wrote in 1899: "One looks towards God's everlasting hills for rest and peace, but where can rest
and peace be found, so long as our portion of these, God's hills, is scarred with such unhealthy
growths, such freaks of houses!" (While she meant ornate Victorians painted white, she most
certainly might be turning over in her grave about the proposed CRT project.)

What the 20th century brought to Berkeley rooted the community even more
conscientiously in its own sense of place. The Simple Home, written by Chatles Keeler, extolled a
natural style of family living on the Berkeley hillsides. The developers Duncan McDuffie and John
Spring planned residential subdivisions, inspired by Olmsted’s landscape principles that were first
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envisioned for Berkeley in the 1860s, with gracious hillside homes enhanced by park ike amenities.
The University selection of John Galen Howard to design a Beaux Arts plan for the Campus
also heralded a new pride for the community. Berkeley become its own force of nature, drawing
inspiration from its own unique setting and developed aesthetic:

"The First Bay Tradition" is a term that has been given to a new direction in
architectural design begun in San Francisco about 1890. It took root and flowered most
distinctively in the North Berkeley Hills just North of the University of California
Campus. While it had its beginnings in the Arts and Crafts Movement in England in
the mid-nineteenth century, it was brought to the Bay Area by a group of architects
which included Ernest Coxhead, Bernard Maybeck, A.C. Schweinfurth, Willis Polk and
later John Galen Howard and Julia Morgan. These architects were classically trained and
were inspired by the wide vistas of open rolling hills and winding verdant creek beds. Their
designs expressed a philosophy characterized by the use of materials indigenous to the area,
in a straight forward and simple manner: structural members were left exposed and
became the decorative elements, wood was left unpainted, exteriors were often covered
with shingles, although board and batten siding as well as halftimbering, brick and
stucco were also used; subtle historical references are found occasionally. Landscaping
featured informal gardens, native stone-work and vine covered arbors, the overall effect was
intended to be compatible with the natural beauty of the Bay Area. The architectural
idiom was so influential that between 1900-1915 the majority of homes built in North
Berkeley, branching out from the Daley Scenic Park tract, were built in this simple
rustic style. In other California cities rustic shingled homes were referred to as "Berkeley

Frown Shingles."”

Susan Dienkelspiel Cerny, "Northside,"
Published by the Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association, 1990

In citing the above historic events and references to Berkeley's architectural history,
BAHA wishes to remind the preparers of the CRT DEIR that the City of Berkeley
Landmarks Preservation Ordinance is inclusive in its scope, beginning with: "It is found that
structures, sites and areas of special character or special historical, architectural or aesthetic
interests or value have been and continue to be unnecessarily destroyed or impaired, despite the
feasibility of preserving them...." (3.24.010, and following). Furthermore, State and National
criteria for recognition of historic and natural resources were created to identify irreplaceable
resources on behalf of the public benefit and for future generations.

When the East Bay Regional Park District was established in 1934, it was made
possible because of an outpouring of public support preserve and protect a vast network of
watershed lands for the public benefit. The proposed park lands and sebsequent park land
acquisitions did not include the University owned property in the East Bay Hills. Perhaps it
was assumed then that the University would forever be a conservator of its vast and beautiful
holdings, containing the Strawberry Canyon watershed. At the time the “Report on Proposed



page 5, LBNL CRT DEIR, January 4, 2008

Park Reservations for East Bay Cities,” prepared for the Bureau of Public Administration,
University of California, by the Olmsted Brothers, landscape architects, and Ansel F. Hall,
National Park Service, was written it did not raise the question of the future of the
University property. This is the time. The CEQA process for the 2006 LBNL LRDP, the
CRT, and the Helios Energy Research Facility will be inadequate without a meaningful

exploration of alternative sites.

Thank you for your consideration of BAHA's concerns.

Sincerely,
(Zﬁ/\/\:\ﬁoﬁd&'ﬁ—\
&L

Carrie Olson, President

Attachment: Letter to Jeff Philliber, LBNL, March 23, 2007, from BAHA Re: LBNL 2006
LRDP
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Jeff Philliber Marcé 213,226{027 Fax. 510- 84l

Environmental Planning Group

Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory

One Cyclotron Road, MS 90J.0120

Berkeley, California 94720 SEND Via FAX 510-486-4101

Re: Comments on the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory 2006 Long Ran‘gc
Development Plan Draft Environmental Impact Report

Dear Jeff Philliber:

The Berkeley Architectural Heritage Association (BAHA) appreciates this opportunity
to comment on the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) for the Lawrence Berkeley
National Laboratory (LBNL) Long Range Development Plan (LRDP). BAHA, a long standing
membership organization dedicated to the education, encouragement, and protection of
Berkeley's unique historic environment, is commenting in its capacity as a public stake holder
with serious concerns about the profound environmental impacts that these plans would have
upon the irreplaceable assets of Strawberry Canyon as a Cultural Landscape.

The LRDP, a programmatic document only, proposes to utilize the Strawberry Canyon
area for almost a million square feet of new and, as of yet, unconstructed building space and to
create 500 additional parking spaces for 1,000 new employees. Concurrently, the project
objectives are proposed to strengthen, expand, and design for new institutional growth. While
these projected plans and objectives would appear to be rational and in sync with current
institutional research practices or business models, they are, in reality, not logical or socially
responsible at this location. The natural and physical terrain of the hillside area, plus the
University’s plans already proposed in the adjoining Southeast Campus, and the significance of
Strawberry Canyon as a Cultural Landscape make this proposal not only unwelcome, but

.ncredulous.

At this juncture the environmental review in the LRDP is lacking an adequate
understanding of the project scale and building(s) mass that would, in fact, be needed to fulfill
the programmatic plans outlined in the DEIR. The stated intent to expand current facilities
and to rehabilitate current facilities is too vague. The sketchy “illustrative design” concepts
portraying the physical imprint of potential “new scientific facilities” are insufficient. There is a
need to disclose true architectural plans, including magnitude, location, height, design,
materials, mechanical apparatus, and waste systems of such building(s) providing for such
“national” research facilities “programmed to accommodate multiple disciplines in advanced
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infrastructure suitable for future scientific endeavors...[and] to support future research
initiatives and continued growth in existing programs” that might serve the combined uses of
academic research, federal/state interests, and industrial capital/business interests. Lacking
such full disclosure at this juncture, the following questions are posed:

* Which existing LBNL facilities would be expanded?
* Which existing LBINL facilities would be rehabilitated?

* How would existing facilities and rehabilitated facilities connect physically to “new scientific
facilities” in order to “enhance collaboration, productivity, and efficiency?”

* Will the Final EIR disclose full architectural plans for all the buildings needed to fulfill the
programmatic plans and project objectives outlined in the DEIR?

* Will any LBNL contracts with outside state/federal and private industry be available for
public review at the time of the Final EIR?

* Will any LBNL contracts with outside state/federal and private industry be completed at
the time of the Final EIR?

* How will the California Governot’s pledge to secure $40 million, or more, determine the size,
scope, demands of the projected “new scientific facilities?”

In the case of the “illustrative design” building concept(s) in the DEIR, sited across
from the University’s historic Botanical Garden, and next to the Stephen Mather Redwood
Grove, the following questions seem appropriate now to ask:

* Why would “new scientific facilities” of such magnitude be placed across from the University's
Botanical Garden, a cultural resource ranking with other major Botanical Gardens as the
one of the world's leading Gardens in the number of plants it contains?

* Would not the “new scientific facilities” adversely effect the integrity of the adjacent
California Area, the largest area of the Botanical Garden that boasts of having the largest
area devoted to a regional collection of native plants?

What would the effect of an industrial-parklike-development be upon the necessary mild
climate that sustains the Botanical Garden?

* How would the LBNL “new scientific facilities” complex, including parking, effect the
natural flow of water in the Botanical Garden?

Is it not alarming that the LBNL “new scientific facilities” complex, including parking, be
proposed adjacent to the Mather Redwood Grove, thus removing a context area that
defines its integrity?

Is the projected location for “new scientific facilities” the only location in Strawberry
Canyon that could accommodate new building(s) and parking of that magnitude?
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As a public stake holder it is expected that BAHA, would concur with the finding of
the DEIR that the LRDP, as proposed, would cause “significant" environmental impacts.
The public health and safety issues alone — such as water pollution, air pollution, landslides,
earthquakes, acts of terrorism, traffic congestion, and extreme fire hazards — are conspicuous.
Strawberry Canyon is a special place defined by a natural environment that is already under the
stress of over-development. Further alteration of its geologically formed hillsides — formed by the
timeless interaction of earthquakes, water flow, and precipitation off the Pacific Ocean — to
accommodate unlimited “new scientific facilities” is, indeed, an alarming proposal. BAHA joins
the City's Planning Commission and Landmarks Preservation Commission in requesting that
alternatives be sought elsewhere on University owned property. The following questions seem
critical to understand:

* Why would the LBNL LRDP DEIR finding of “significant” environmental impacts be
“unavoidable” (italics ours) when the University owns property elsewhere that is potentially
suitable for scientific research and development?

» What property owned by the University in Richmond has been set aside for potential
University research and development?

e When was University property in Richmond identified as a potential for research and
development?

e Is any of the University property in Richmond contaminated?
¢ Is any of the University's Strawberry Canyon property contaminated?

* Given the current practice of global partnerships and collaborations, technological flexibility,
and shared advanced research locations, why would a LBNL LRDP project objective be
limited to one “main site” within the University, Berkeley, area!

e Would not LBNL elect to give leadership to environmental solutions that will have a

positive local, regional environmental impact as well as to global environmental solutions?

The University, Berkeley, and, indeed, LBNL gained their historical roots because of
Strawberry Canyon. As early as the 1850s the site was recognized to be a provider of constant
water, making possible the location of a future educational institution. The sense of place then
was poetic among those who selected the site:

The line of the horizon sweeps in the distance round almost half a circle, commencing at
the summit near New Almaden and following a mountain line till it passes west of [San
Francisco], where it becomes an ocean horizon for a considerable distance...The extent, the
variety of the life embraced in the scenery presented in this view, including as it does land
and water, bay and ocean, islands, plains and mountains, city and country, are seldom

equaled. Rev. S. H. Willey, 1858
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Later, in 1865, Frederick Law Olmsted, America's father of landscape architecture, was to
describe the dramatic impressions of the “steep declivities of the coast range” and the “native
foliage of a very beautiful character” that defined the effect of Strawberry Canyon as it graced
what would become the urban town. The origins of LBNL in Strawberry Canyon, beginning in
the WWII era, should be remembered as having its origin in such a rustic and unapproachable
area because of the need to have a nearly secret and inaccessible location.

Again, BAHA takes the lead from the City's Landmarks Preservation Commission which
responded to the' DEIR with the comment “the Strawberry Canyon Area is a potential
Cultural Landscape...[that] the DEIR does not acknowledge the adverse impacts.. .therefore,
alternatives, including alternative sites for the proposed development(s), need to be identified

and analyzed in the FEIR.”

Thank you for your attention to BAHA's comments and for your consideration of

BAHA's concerns.

S incerely,

ﬁ/]wv

Wendy arkel, Presxdent





